AGENDA FOR

Public Document Pack

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Contact::
Direct Line:
E-mail:
Web Site:

Keren Murphy

0161 2535130
k.m.murphy@bury.gov.uk
www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : A Cummings (Chair), J Black, S Briggs,
S Carter, R Caserta, D Gunther, P Heneghan, D Jones,
A Matthews, A Quinn, S Southworth and Y Wright

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control
Committee which will be held as follows:-

COoOUNCIL i‘lj

Date:

Tuesday, 20 January 2015

Place:

Peel Room, Bury Town Hall

Time:

7.00 pm

Briefing
Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the
related report should be contacted.

The Development Manager will brief the Committee on
any changes to be made to the Planning Applications
to be considered at this meeting since the issue of the
Agenda. This information will also be provided in the
Supplementary Agenda which will be circulated to
Members and made available to the public on the
Council’s website on the day of the meeting.

Notes:

Food will be available from 5.00 pm (Balcony Bar)
Pre-meeting Briefing at 6.00 pm (Lancaster Room).




The Agenda and reports for the meeting are attached.

The Agenda and reports are available on the Council’s Intranet for
Councillors and Officers and on the Council’s website at
www.bury.gov.uk — Council and Democracy.

Yours sincerely

[o]

ke (@l

/‘

Mike Kelly
CHIEF EXECUTIVE



N & 0 »

AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if

so, to formally declare that interest.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 16 DECEMBER, 2014 (Pages 1
-4)

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 5 - 104)
DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 105 - 120)
PLANNING APPEALS (Pages 121 - 126)
URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting: 16 December, 2014
Present:

Councillors: Councillor A Cummings (In the Chair)

Councillors J Black, S Briggs, S Carter, R Caserta, D
Gunther, P Heneghan, D Jones, A Matthews, A Quinn
and Y Wright

Public attendance: 5 members of the public were in attendance

Apologies for
absence: Councillor S Southworth

PCC.377

PCC.378

PCC.379

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.
MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 November, 2014 be approved
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted in relation to two
applications for planning permission. Supplementary information was also
submitted in respect of application numbers: 58088 and 58153.

The Committee heard representations from applicants and/or objectors in
respect of the applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes
for each speaker.

Delegated decisions:

That Approval be given to the following application in accordance with
the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the report and
supplementary information submitted and subject to the conditions
included:

57830 The Trafalgar, Manchester Old Road, Bury - Bury East -
Redvales Ward

Change of use from public house to no.5 flats with first floor extensions to
side and rear and new access from Baron Street for parking

57837 40 New Road, Radcliffe, Manchester - Radcliffe West Ward
Single storey side extension

57950 Land at side of 3 Myrtle Grove, Radcliffe — Whitefield &
Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward
Erection of new detached house

Pagebi3



Planning Control Committee, 16 December 2014

PCC.380

PCC.381

PCC.382

58088 Land at rear of 44 & 46 Moorside Road, Tottington -
Ramsbottom & Tottington - Tottington Ward

Siting of static caravan for office/rest room/canteen ancillary to proposed
equine business on site (resubmission)

58153 34 Chesham Road, Bury — Bury East - Moorside Ward
Variation of condition no.4 following grant of planning permission 52388:
Amend from: No customer shall be permitted to be on the premises
outside the following times: 08:00 - 20.30 Mondays to Saturdays and
08:00 - 18:00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Amend to: The permitted use shall not be open to customers, nor shall
any deliveries to customers be carried out, outside the following times:
08:00 to 21.30 Monday to Thursday inclusive Sundays and Bank Holidays
and 08.00 to 22.00 Friday and Saturday.

That the Committee be Minded to Approve the following application in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in
the report and supplementary information submitted and subject to the
conditions included:

56744 Land at Bury Road/York Street, Radcliffe, Manchester -
Radcliffe East Ward

Hybrid full planning application for the erection of 153 no. dwellings
together with associated works including the laying out of public open
space, and the undertaking of engineering operations to remediate the
site, raise the levels, construct an emergency access and development
platform for future commercial development; Outline planning application
for erection of a Class B1/B2 and B8 development of 7435 m2

DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted listing all recent
Planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers.

Delegated decision:

To note the report.

PLANNING APPEALS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted which presented a
list of recent planning appeal decisions. The report included a copy of the
Appeal Decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate in relation to Planning
Case Reference: 0011/12.

Delegated decision:

To note the report.

NEW NATIONAL GUIDANCE ON SECTION 106 PLANNING
OBLIGATIONS

The Development Manager submitted a report which provided details of
the new national guidance introduced on the 28 November, 2014 by

Rord 2



PCC.383

Planning Control Committee, 16 December 2014
Government regarding Section 106 contributions.
Delegated decision:
To note the report.
CHRISTMAS & NEW YEAR 2014
The Chair, Councillor Cummings gave his best wishes to all those involved
in the Planning Control Committee for the Christmas and New Year
holidays. Councillor Gunther, on behalf of members of the Committee

thanked Councillor Cummings in his role as Chair of the Committee for
2014.

Chair COUNCILLOR A CUMMINGS
(Note: The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 7.20 pm)

Pagetd



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee
On: 20 January 2015
By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: Identified in each case.
Policy: Identified in each case.
Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:

The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;

The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include
a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, | have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 5



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

Development Manager

Background Documents

The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.

Certificates relating to the ownership.
Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.

Responses from Consultees.

OON =~

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 6



01 Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - App No. 58104
Ramsbottom
Location: Land To The Rear Of The Grants Arms, Market Place, Ramsbottom, Bury,
BLO 9AJ
Proposal: Erection of 24 (Cat C) flats for retirement housing for the elderly,
communal facilities, landscaping and car parking
Recommendation: Minded to Approve Site Y
Visit:
02 Township Forum - Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley App No. 58105
Location: Site of former Claremont Home, Park View Road, Prestwich, Manchester,
M25 1FA
Proposal: Erection of extra care accommodation for the elderly (Class C2
Use—Residential Institutions) (62 units in total) landscaping and car
parking.
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
03 Township Forum - Ward: North Manor App No. 58133
Location: Windacre Works, Mather Road, Bury, BL9 6RB
Proposal: Outline application for demolition of the existing buildings and
redevelopment of the site for residential development including means of
access (All other Matters Reserved)
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
04 Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - App No. 58146
Ramsbottom
Location: Higher Tops Barn, Moor Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NU
Proposal: Erection of agricultural Store and yard, entrance onto Moor Road
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
05 Township Forum - Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth App No. 58184

Location: Mercedes Benz, 845 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9TP
Proposal: Erection of 17 no. column mounted lights and 4 no. wall mounted lights in
the dealership car park/display area, 27 no. wall mounted lights on the
roof-top car park and provision of a low level wall and railings along the
Manchester Road site frontage
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:

Page 7



06

Township Forum - Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth

Location: 51 Heathfield Road, Bury, BL9 8HB
Proposal: Single storey extension at side
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

App No.

Site
Visit:

58252

N

Page 8



Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - Item 01
Ramsbottom

Applicant: Astim Ltd
Location: Land To The Rear Of The Grants Arms, Market Place, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9AJ

Proposal: Erection of 24 (Cat C) flats for retirement housing for the elderly, communal facilities,
landscaping and car parking

Application Ref: 58104/Full Target Date: 11/02/2015
Recommendation: Minded to Approve

It is recommended that this application is Minded to Approve subject to the signing
and completion of a Section 106 agreement for Loss of Protected Recreation
Provision in accordance with Policy RT1/1 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan,
recreation provision in accordance with Policy RT2/2 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan and SPD1. Should the agreement not be signed and completed
within a reasonable period, it is requested that the application be determined by the
Development Manager.

The Development Manager has recommended a site visit be carried out prior to the
Planning Committee meeting.

Description

The site relates to a vacant piece of land which was formally used as a bowling green. Itis
designated as Protected Recreation Provision under UDP Policy RT1/1 and set within the
Ramsbottom Town Centre Conservation Area. To the north are residential properties on
Pinners Close, to the east, the land slopes steeply away from the site leading to an access
track which runs along the rear of properties on Oxhey Close. To the west is a public car
park and directly adjacent to the south is the Civic Hall, with the Grants Arms, a Grade Il
Listed Building to the south west. The site is set in an elevated position in relation to the
town centre and accessed via a steep cobbled road which leads from Market Place.

The piece of land itself gradually rises from the south to north to a slight banking and timber
fence to the side elevation of No 24 Pinners Close, and slopes from the car park down to
the rear access track to the east. There are a few trees around the perimeter although the
majority have previously been removed. The site has since become overgrown and
derelict.

The application seeks the erection of 24 self contained flats (11x2 bed and 13x1 bed) for the
over 55's with associated car park and landscaping. For clarification, the proposed scheme
has been amended from 28 units to 24 units.

The building would be located to the north of the Civic Hall and to the east of the public car
park. The footprint of the building would be set back within the site and orientated with the
main entrance and parking provision facing the public car park.

The building would be 3 storey in height with a single storey element on the most northerly
end of the building. Elevations would feature juliette style balconies to the front and rear
and a projected front entrance slightly off-set to the north, incorporating a glazed canopy.
Materials would comprise coursed stone walls to the majority of the frontage with an Ashlar
buff stone to the entrance section. It would be predominantly rendered at the rear with the
middle section in random stone. The roof would be pitched with grey slate tiles.

The flats would be self contained, with a communal laundry, residents lounge and bin store

Page 9



area.

Within the grounds, there would be soft and hard landscaping, seating areas and amenity
space and tree/shrub planting.

The entrance would be directly from the existing car park into the development site with
parking for 13 cars (including 2 disabled spaces). A pedestrian footpath would continue
from the Civic Hall to link through into the southern area of the site. The external bin store
would be located adjacent to the southern boundary.

Relevant Planning History

56225 - Erection of 34 (Cat C) flats for retirement housing for the elderly, communal
facilities, landscaping and car parking - Withdrawn by Applicant 12/07/2013

57271 - Erection of 28 (Cat C) flats for retirement housing for the elderly, communal
facilities, landscaping and car parking (resubmission) - Withdrawn by Applicant 01/05/2014

Publicity

131 letters sent on 31/10/2014 to properties in the immediate area and other addresses
further afield who were unsolicited objectors to the previous application.

Site notice posted 10/12/2014.

Press advert in the Bury Times on 6/11/2014.

As a result of the publicity, 52 objections received. A full list of addresses is available on
the public file.
The issues raised are as follows:

e This is the third time of having to object to an application twice withdrawn because of
adverse publicity,

e A thriving bowling green was closed because the builder has other plans;

e Trees have been cut down without permission and the site left in a disgraceful state;

e Hard to understand why an application from a business with such a record is being
considered;

e Increase in traffic which is already grid locked;

e There are already retirement flats being built on Bolton Road West and soon in
Holcombe Brook;

e Additional traffic and parking to the immediate area;

e Visitor parking to Ramsbottom will be affected and be detrimental to the visitors and
businesses in the area as the adjacent car park is the main parking area for
Ramsbottom, which could not survive a reduction in public parking;

e With a negative impact on parking, many of the commercial units would ultimately be
vacant;

e Access to the flats for 'elderly' and ambulant disabled would be restrictive, via a steep
ascent, or a longer access through Pinners Close;

¢ In the Winter months access would be even more treacherous, with slippery steep paths
- surely this should be considered;

e A great deal of money and effort has been put into making the Civic Hall an amenity for
the town but people would not want to use as a venue and be overlooked by flats;

e The Civic Hall would come under pressure from any development;

e A ploy to get permission for sale to a general age group as the applicant know full well
the elderly will not be interested;

e Not true to say the bowling green was underused - the increase in costs caused the club
to fold;

e Description should read being the Civic Hall, not the Grants Arms;

e The former bowling green is in the Ramsbottom Conservation Area and specially
protected as a green open space within the town centre itself;the site should be returned
to its original use or similar green area,;

e The proposed building would jeopardise the further economic development of the centre
of Ramsbottom itself;

Page 10



As recognised in the NPPF, Conservation Areas should contain buildings of special
architectural of historic features and enhance areas which this scheme does not;

The proposal would dwarf the existing buildings, Listed Buildings and is of no particular
architectural merit;

A historic survey of the land should be undertaken to understand its significance within
the history of Ramsbottom;

The development would remove a piece of Green Urban Space which is a valuable
commodity to Ramsbottom;

Five petitions received with 37, 71, 15 and 35, 15 signatures respectively with the following
issues raised:

The proposed development would cause an increase in traffic on the narrow, steep,
stetted access road which is shared with other users, and dangerous for pedestrians;
Additional traffic would increase congestion;

Civic Hall is the only large community venue in Ramsbottom, a thriving business which
would come under pressure from development;

The Hall and garden would be overshadowed by the proposed large building, dominate
smaller scale buildings including historic and listed buildings;

The development site is designated as open space;

The land is in the Conservation Area where development should be an enhancement.
The design takes no account of the special features and character of the conservation
area;

Oppressive building to the residents of Pinners Close;

Noise and disturbance to residents of Pinners Close;

Dangerous for pedestrians walking from Market Place to Pinners Close.

Objection received from a Planning Consultant on behalf of No 6 Oxhey Close which raises
the following issues:

Impact on residential amenity - The floor levels and ground levels at the rear of No 6 are
2m lower than the application site, with the distance from the rear elevation to the back
of the bowling green being 19m. The proposal would result in 3 storey development
22m from the rear elevation of No 6 with overall height of 12m. Proximity would be
overbearing as the dwelling is single storey at the rear, and dominate rear outlook and
garden, affect habitable room windows, detrimental impact on the sunlight and daylight
provision. Therefore contrary to H2/1.

Loss of community facility/open space - No concrete justification for the loss of the
bowling green and no alternative provision indicated, therefore contrary to RT1/1. Loss
of an open valuable space would be contrary to TC1/1;

Impact on the character of the area/Conservation Area - Development would have an
impact on the setting of Heritage Assets. No Heritage Statement has been submitted
to assess the significance of the Conservation Area and links between the bowling
green and neighbouring Grants Arms (Grade Il Listed Building). The proposal would
enclose the square/car park and dominate the streetscene in this location. The design
would have features incongruous in the street scene and detrimental to the character of
the conservation area. Design appearance, scale and massing would have a
detrimental impact on the townscape in the immediate vicinity. Contrary to section 12
of the NPPF and UDP policies EN1/1, EN1/2, EN2/1, EN2/2 and EN2/3;

Other issues - There is a water course underneath the application site and periods of
rain discharge onto the gravel path between Oxhey Close and the site. Without
appropriate survey and diversion, any foundations and hardening areas will have a
detrimental effect on the watercourse and exacerbate the drainage problem and the
watercourse creating additional problems to neighbouring occupiers. Given the
gradients of the site and gravel path there will be the potential to affect run off into
Ramsbottom. Potential to also create highways hazards at time of high rainfall.

Objection received from the Friends of Nuttall Park with the following issues:

Loss of green open space In Ramsbottom which are few;
Loss of a sporting opportunity which contributes to the health and welfare of people

Page 11



Objection received from Councillor Bevan which raises the following issues:

Recent controversy when the trees were felled on site, following which successful action
was taken by Bury MBC;

The land is Protected Recreational Ground and the heart of the Conservation Area;
Policy OL3 in the Bury Urban Development Plan provides that this type of land requires
protection from development and is not regarded as being a reservoir for development.
It was a valuable piece of recreational ground until the owners forced the bowling club
out due to excessive rent and charges;

The government attaches great weight to OL3, once built on open space likely to be lost
forever;

Whilst some of the materials would be stone, the majority (render, upvc, entrance)
would be unsuitable in the Conservation Area;

Only 13 spaces despite a 28 bed flat development;

Access is via a steep incline, difficult for both vehicles and pedestrians and unsuitable
for elderly;

Situated in the town centre adjacent to a lively pub and Civic Hall which undertakes
regular evening entertainment. Doubt whether the site would be suitable for retirement
flats given potential for noise and loss of amenity. Can envisage complaints;

If permission granted despite objections, trust it is ensured the owners pay
compensation to local residents for loss of this important recreational ground by way of
a S106.

Objection received from Ramsbottom Heritage Society summarised as follows:

The scheme is totally at variance with the Ramsbottom Conservation Area Management
plan which seeks to ensure proposals protect and enhance the character and
appearance of the area, which this fails to do;

The scheme should be more sympathetically designed to blend in with the neighbouring
buildings;

It does not protect the historic bowing green and designated as Protected Recreation
Provision under policy RT1/1 should be retained;

Far from being in decline, the bowling club has been forced to close;

The whole development in terms of design, choice of materials, location, poor
pedestrian access, lack of parking is deeply flawed and future impact on activities of the
civic hall could be devastating;

Materials and design are completely contrary to the conservation management plan;
Inappropriate location for the elderly being situated on top of a steep hill;

Objection received from Friends of Ramsbottom Civic Hall (FORCH) summarised as
follows:

The land is designated as Protected Recreation Ground, used as such for 150 years, is
within the Conservation Area and near to Listed Buildings. The Council and LPA have
a duty to preserve as such;
The land owners have failed to communicate with FORCH to discuss the use of the land
and future of the bowling green;
Mature trees felled illegally on the site and the owners fined at court;
Detrimental impact on the Civic Hall - Functions would be directly alongside the
development, the gardens at the rear overshadowed, light significantly reduced,
increase in traffic creating significant dangers and access problems, use of the outside
of the hall inhibited, impact on proposed plans to improve access to the upper floor of
the hall and means of escape;
Business events, festivals etc would be inhibited by the development;
Significant increase in traffic;
Represents a monolithic addition to the building stock of Ramsbottom, out of scale to
the surroundings and in a highly prominent and visible position;
Pressure on local services significantly increased;
Significantly over-ambitious scheme;
Access to the site for the elderly inadequate and totally unsuitable;

Page 12



e Applicant has personal profit as prime objective;
e No effort to involve local people.

The objectors have been informed of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Consultations

Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity - No comments received.
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection subject to conditions to provide a
detailed landscaping scheme and tree protection measures.

United Utilities (Water and Waste) - No response received. A condition has been
recommended by the LPA's Drainage Section.

Traffic Section - No objection subject to conditions.

Drainage Section - No objection subject to condition.

Environmental Health Contaminated Land - No objection subject to conditions.
Waste Management - No objection.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas

EN2/2 Conservation Area Control

TC1/1 Open Space in Town Centres

RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area
H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development

H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN1/5 Crime Prevention

EN9 Landscape

SPD16 Design and Layout of New Development in Bury
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

HT4 New Development

HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting

SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision

EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies - Following revocation of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy on 20 May
2013, there is no statutory housing target for Bury. Work is continuing on Bury's Local Plan,
which will bring forward a new statutory housing target.

In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year
supply of deliverable housing land.

Page 13



UDP Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing
a proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity,
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses.

UDP Policies H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development and H2/2 - The Layout of
New Residential Development takes into consideration factors relating to the height and roof
type of adjacent buildings, the impact of developments on residential amenity, the density
and character of the surrounding area and the position and proximity of neighbouring
properties. Regard is also given to parking provision and access, landscaping and
protection of trees/hedgerows and external areas.

Supplementary Planning Document 6 - Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties
provides useful guidance in terms of acceptable aspect standards between dwellings and
design criteria.

EN2/1 - Character of Conservation Areas and EN2/2 - Conservation Area Control seek to
preserve or enhance the character and appearance of these areas. Development will only
be acceptable if it preserves or enhances these areas with regard to the nature of the
development in terms of bulk, height, materials, design, relationship to the surrounding area,
and impact of a new use on the character of the surrounding area. Proposals where
appropriate should seek to implement measures to retain, replace, restore features of
architectural interest, retain and enhance landscaping features, promote environmental
enhancement and promote design guidelines to ensure sympathetic development.

ENZ2/3 - Listed Buildings seeks to actively safeguard the character and setting of Listed
Buildings by not permitting works, alterations or changes of use which would have a
detrimental effect on their historical or architectural character and features.

RT1/1 - Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area states that development would
not be allowed where it would result in the loss of existing and proposed outdoor
public/private recreation areas, recreation space within settlements located in the Green
Belt, indoor facilities for which there is a recreational need or any other unidentified
recreation provision created within the Plan.

Exceptions to this may be permitted through the redevelopment of part of the site, if
alternative provision is made available or it can be demonstrated there is an excess of
recreation/open space in the area. The policy also recognises that some recreation sites
may genuinely become redundant, and rather leaving them derelict, permit a change to an
alternative use if there is no prospect of the site being required for recreation use, either
now or in the future. The Council has accepted the loss of such sites in the past where a
contribution has been paid to compensate for the loss of recreation provision.

Issues -

Loss of sports/recreation facility - The application relates to a site which is designated as

Protected Recreation Provision under UDP Policy RT1/1 and the NPPF makes reference to

recreation land and open spaces in Chapter 8 - Promoting healthy communities. The

principle of residential development is considered not to be acceptable, unless:

e alternative provision of equivalent community benefit is made available;

e the development is for alternative sports and recreation provision, the needs for which
clearly outweigh the loss; or

e an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the land to be surplus to
requirements.

The site has remained vacant and in the 2006 Greenspace Strategy Audit was scored as
'poor'. There have been no further proposals which have come forward to redevelop it for
recreational purposes. It has since become derelict, overgrown and disused.

However, the site remains designated as Protected Recreation Provision to which Policy
Page 14



RT1/1 applies. In this particular case, whilst the site in its current state has scored poorly
and there are no plans to return it to recreation use, it nevertheless has the potential to do
so. There is a shortfall of recreation provision in the Borough overall and in this particular
part of the Borough for outdoor sport. Therefore, the loss of this site, with its potential to be
returned to a functional recreation use, can only be considered acceptable for
redevelopment subject to the applicant making an appropriate contribution to compensate
for the loss of the recreation site.

This has been calculated at £67,031.25 and is based on the Sport England's model and
costs and then applied to the size of the bowling green which is recorded at 0.12 hectares in
the 2010 Greenspace Strategy.

The applicant has agreed to this contribution which would be secured by way of a S106
Agreement.

Residential development - The site is in a town centre location and as such in a
sustainable location, being within walking distance of the shopping area, on a main bus
route and served by existing infrastructure. The application relates to the provision of
retirement housing and would support the aims of providing this type of accommodation in
the Borough.

As such, the principle is in general accordance with national and regional planning policy,
would help to meet local housing targets and therefore complies with the NPPF and UDP
Policy H1/2 - Further Housing Development.

The layout, Conservation considerations, design and appearance, and car parking and
access issues will be assessed in the report below.

Conservation considerations - The site is set within the Ramsbottom Conservation Area
and also close to the Grants Arms, a Grade Il Listed Building.

Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended), Chapter 12 -
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment of the NPPF and UDP Policies EN2/1,
EN2/2 and EN2/3 seeks to consider the relationships of proposed development to the
architectural and visual qualities of the surrounding area, with the emphasis on preserving
and enhancing these areas and safeguarding the setting of Listed Buildings. The
Ramsbottom Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan (November 2011)
describes Market Place as the focus of the conservation area, and at the crossroads as the
historic centre of Ramsbottom.

The proposed building would be 3 storeys in height, which would be similar to the height,
scale and massing of the adjacent Civic Hall and Grade Il Listed Grants Arms opposite. It
would be positioned to the north of the Civic Hall and set back within the site, with the front
elevation in line with the rear elevation of the Hall. The set back is such that the building
would not 'compete’ with the street scene or be at odds with the outlook from, or light to, any
of the windows in the side of the Civic Hall. It would neither conflict with the position or
stature of the Listed Grants Arms and is considered to sit well within the context of the street
scene.

The traditional character of the Conservation Area would be preserved through the use of a
simple palette of materials. This would comprise predominantly stonework to the frontage,
a mix of render and stonework at the rear, and render to the 2 side elevations. The roof
would be pitched and tiled. As the building would be set back into the site and also from
the front elevation of the Civic Hall, the axonometric projection shows that view of the sides
of the building, and the rear for that matter, would not be visible when approached from
Market Place. The public face of the development would maintain stonework, and as such
this would be fitting and proper within the setting of the conservation area and is considered
to preserve and enhance the environment. For the avoidance of doubt, a condition to
submit samples of materials prior to commencement of any development would be a

Page 15



condition of a permission if granted.

The building would be of a traditional form and appropriate in design and scale with
acceptable details and materials. In terms of the Conservation Area, it is considered the
scheme would respect the character and special interests of Ramsbottom.

There has been no Heritage Statement submitted with the application but the conservation
issues have been considered in the Design and Access Statement.

As such, it is considered that the size, height and position of the proposed building would
preserve and enhance the Conservation Area and would comply with UDP Policies EN2/1,
EN2/2 and EN2/3.

Design and appearance - The building's mass would be broken up with elevational
design features including a projecting entrance facade, juliette balconies incorporating some
full height windows, and stone quoins. Windows would be casement in design, and have a
2 paned glazing appearance in a narrow aluminium framing, with detailing of lintels, jambs
and cills in natural stone to match that of the surrounding area. =~ To promote conservation
design, a condition would ensure all windows would have a minimum reveal of 75mm.

The entrance would be defined by a lightweight glazed canopy located just off centre on the
front elevation. It would only be publically viewed 'face-on' from the public car park in front
and as such, the position of the proposed entrance is considered not to result in a peculiar
or unbalanced appearance to the fenestration of the front facade.

As such, the design and appearance of the building is considered to be in keeping with the
character and visual quality of the surrounding conservation area, and would reflect the
architectural character and fabric of the nearby Listed Building and the Conservation Area.
It is considered to preserve and enhance the character of the conservation area and would
comply with UDP Policies EN1/2, EN2/1 and EN2/2.

Layout - The building would either be approached by foot from Pinners Close to the north
or Market Place to the south by vehicle. The plot of land is rectangular in shape and the
proposed building would utilise the space by siting the building to run lengthways from north
to south, fronting the public car park, with the main entrance defined just off centre by a
lightweight glazed canopy. There would be access in the form of a footpath and gardens
around the perimeter of the building with designated seating areas and gardens to provide
outdoor amenity areas. The bin store would be located to the south of the site and enclosed
with an open fronted access, details of its design and appearance would be sought by a
condition. Thirteen parking spaces would be located to the front of the site and a block
paved pathway would define a pedestrian route through to the building.

Boundary treatment would comprise close boarded timber fencing and mature tree and
shrubbery planting through the provision of a landscaping plan, which would be secured by
way of a planning condition to ensure appropriate replacements for those previously lost on
the site.

Internally, the scheme would provide 11x2 bed and 13x1 bed, with 2 guest rooms provided
for visitors on the 1st and 2nd floors. A communal residents lounge, laundry room and
refuse collection point would be located on the ground floor of the building.

The layout of the scheme would provide circulation space around the building, together with
accessible external amenity and parking areas. It is considered the siting of the building
would relate well to the surrounding environment without compromising the amenities of the
occupiers of nearby properties, and as such would comply with UDP Policies H1/2, H2/1
and H2/2.

Impact upon residential properties - There is no policy guidance on aspect standards for
this type of development. However, Supplementary Planning Document 6 does provide

Page 16



guidance on separation distances and is a useful yardstick for the consideration of new
residential development in relation to existing dwellings. Generally, a separation of 20m is
required between facing habitable room windows of 2 properties, with an additional 3m of
separation required for each additional storey.

Pinners Close - The difference in levels in the land to the north of the site results in the
building being the same height as No 24 Pinners Close, the adjacent residential property to
the north. There would be a distance of 7.5m between the proposed single storey element
of the new build, and the side elevation of No 24. There are no habitable windows in the
side elevation of either property which would be affected.

It is also proposed to provide an outdoor amenity area on the roof of the single storey
element of the new build. The difference in levels between No 24 and the site is such that
the roof terrace would be on the same level as the garden of No 24 and accordingly there
would be no greater impact on the privacy of this property than the relationship between 2
level adjacent gardens.

There is an existing boundary fence along the side of No 24 and the application proposes
additional intervening planting along this boundary . As such, it is considered there would be
minimal impact in terms of any overlooking or privacy issues to this property.

There would be no direct relationship between the proposed building and No 22 Pinners
Close.

Oxhey Close - There would be a separation distance of 23m from the rear elevation of No 6
Oxhey Close to the east of the site and the proposed building. SPD6 advocates a 20m
separation between facing habitable room windows plus 3m per additional storey. No 6
Oxhey is set at a lower level than the site.

Because of the topography of the site and the significantly elevated position of the proposed
building in comparison to No 6 Oxhey, there would be no direct overlooking from habitable
room windows of the new build to the rear windows of No 6 Oxhey. Views would be over
the top of this property and as such there would be less of an impact on the privacy of No 6,
compared to a directly facing window to window relationship. This is a common place
relationship between properties in Ramsbottom given the topography of the area.

There is an existing access track which runs along the rear boundary of No 6. Additional
tree planting is proposed to the rear boundary of the site (imposed as a landscaping
condition with the emphasis on the planting of mature trees), which together with a
boundary fence, would further minimise any potential overlooking into this property or the
garden.

Given these intervening features, and the separation distance, the position of the proposed
building in relation to this property is considered to be acceptable and would be in
compliance with the aspect standards of SPD6.

As such, the proposal is considered to comply with UDP Policies H2/1 - The Form of New
Residential Development and H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development and
SPDG6.

Access and parking - Vehicular access would be directly from the Grants Arms public car
park, located in a central position in relation to the site and the building. This would lead
into a parking area and the main entrance to the building. The scale and character of the
scheme is such that it would not generate significant levels of traffic and as such would not
interfere with the movements in and around the existing Grants Arms car park.

Pedestrian access would be via a newly created footpath which would continue the existing
footpath infront of the Civic Hall and link into the site along the southern boundary. This
would lead to the main entrance to the building.

Page 17



SPD11 - Parking Standards in Bury does not have a specific category for this type of
accommodation, falling neither within a purely residential or sheltered housing scheme. It is
proposed to provide 13 spaces for the 24 flats and these would be laid out and demarcated
to the front of the site.

The proposed development is similar to other schemes which have been carried out in the
Borough, where the expectations for parking provision would be lower, given it would be
directed towards the older age group where it is accepted that residents of this type of
accommodation are less likely to be car owners.

The site is within a town centre location with excellent links to public transport. The close
proximity to shops and services would also provide for the day to day needs of residents
and as such largely preclude the need for a car.

The Highways Section raise no objection to the application and has recommended
conditions that relate to the provision and layout off the parking area and works to the site
access and pedestrian footpath.

As such, the proposal is considered to be acceptable and comply with UDP Policy H2/2 -
The layout of New Residential Development.

Access/Location - Objectors have raised concerns that the development would not be
accessible for future occupiers, and particularly the elderly.

There is a public car park, public house and Civic Hall all located at the top of the access
road to the site. Users of all ages utilise these facilities and are not prejudiced by the
gradient. Much in the same way, any future occupants would be aware of the local
topography, and were the site not suitably accessible for them, would either choose not to
live there or otherwise accept the local conditions.

The site is in a highly sustainable location and subject to appropriate responses to the UDP
allocation of protecting the recreation provision, is a site that would be suitable for, amongst
other things, the proposed development and its intended use.

As such, the proposal is considered to be acceptable and in compliance with UDP Policies
H1/2 - Further Housing Development and H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development.

Ecology - GMEU have been consulted on the application and identify that the main
ecological interest on the site were the mature trees, many of which have now been felled.
Whilst it is the intention to retain the existing trees on the periphery of the site and a
landscaping scheme has been submitted to show replacement planting, the scheme
suggests all trees would be non-native and only of medium stature. This would not be in
keeping with the previous landscape of the site or the woodland to the north.

GMEU have suggested that proposed trees 6 and 7 be replaced by feature tree species
such as small leaved lime or beech and other replacements should be of a similar native
species, and would be satisfied that details could be sought by a condition.

As such, it is considered reasonable to include a condition which would require the applicant
to submit a landscape management plan, detailing the number, size and species of trees,
for approval prior to the commencement of any development, and implemented within 12
months from the completion of the development (see Condition 6).

An informative has been suggested by GMEU with regard to Japanese knotweed and
measures which should be taken if found on the site.

Page 18



Servicing and bin store area - The bin store would be sited in an area to the south of the
site. The waste management team already service this part of the town centre, picking up
from the Grants Arms and the Civic Hall. The bins would be wheeled out to the back edge
of pavement adjacent to the Civic Hall, similar to the existing arrangement, and the waste
management team have raised no objection to the proposals.

Contributions -

Loss of Protected Recreation Provision - As stated above, the development would result in
the loss of Protected Recreation Provision as defined in RT1/1. The applicant has agreed
to a one-off payment of £67,031.25 to compensate for the loss and this would be secured
through a S106 Agreement.

Recreation Provision - For new Residential Development under SPD1, the scale of the
proposals requires a recreation contribution of £40,647.94, which the applicant has agreed
to and will be secured through a S106 Agreement.

Concern has been raised that the development would not be guaranteed as retirement
accommodation, and could be sold on the open market to any age group. That being the
case, a higher standard of parking may also be required as the character of the
development would change. To ensure the future occupancy of the development, the S106
Agreement would include an appropriate provision to ensure the units would only be
available to occupiers 55 years or older. The accommodation also proposes 2 rooms for
visitors of the occupants to stay, but this would be for short term and limited periods and
need not be included in the contribution requirements.

Response to objectors - Objections raised to the proposed development have been
covered in the above report.

Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Minded to Approve

Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered Location plan dwg 01; Proposed site
plan (inc landscaping and grassed are) dwg 500K; Proposed site plan landscaping
scheme dwg 50L; Proposed elevations dwg 500H; Proposed floor plans 200H;
Proposed axono-metric elevation dwg 600; Canopy detail received 6/1/15;
Topographical survey QDS/350/453/TOP Revision O; Existing cross sections dwg
250; Design and Access Statement October 2014; Walkover Survey and Desk
Study No 5730 May 2013 and the development shall not be carried out except in
accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

Page 19



No development shall commence unless and until:-

e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

e Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

e Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human

health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider environment and pursuant to

National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the

natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where ground
gas remediation / protection measures are required, the approved Remediation
Strategy must be carried out to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority within approved timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To alleviate any possible risk associated with the production of landfill gas
and ground gas in accordance with the recommendations of the Environment
Agency and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

A landscaping scheme, to include both hard and soft landscaping and car park
surfacing finish, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The content
of the plan should include details of replacement trees including number, species
and size, which should be long lived native species. The approved plan only shall
be implemented in the first available planting season and not later than 12 months
from completion of the development; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or
becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of
planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those
originally required to be planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2
— Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Page 20



10.

11.

12.

The development hereby approved shall not commence unless and until a scheme
of protection for all trees to be retained on site in accordance with BS 5837:2005
"Trees in Relation to Construction" (or subsequently amended), including details of
the protection of the root systems of the existing trees, has been submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not
commence unless and until the measures required by that scheme have been
implemented, to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and all
measures required by the scheme shall continue until the development has been
completed.

Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 — Woodland and Tree
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

No trees shall be removed between 1st March and 31st August inclusive in any
year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist has
been carried out immediately prior to clearance and has verified the absence of
occupied bird nests in writing, supplied to and agreed by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

All windows in the development hereby approved shall be fitted within a minimum
reveal of 75mm.

Reason. In the interests of good design pursuant to Bury Unitary Development
Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, EN2/1 - Character of
Conservation Areas and EN2/2 - Conservation Area Control.

Details/Samples of the materials, (stone, render and roof slate) to be used in the
external elevations, together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and
size, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
before the development is commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used
for the construction of the development.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

No development shall commence unless and until details of the design,
materials, location and access arrangements there to, of the bin store hereby
approved, have been submitted for approval to the Local Planning Authority.

The approved details only shall be implemented and the bin store made available
for use prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved and
thereafter maintained.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity pursuant to Bury Unitary development
plan Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN2/2 - Conservation Area
Control.

The development hereby approved shall not be commenced unless and until full
details of the proposed pedestrian access arrangements indicated indicatively on
the approved plans have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details subsequently approved shall be implemented prior
to the development hereby approved being brought into use/first occupied.

Page 21



Reason. To ensure good highway design in the interests of pedestrian safety
pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New
Residential Development and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

13.  The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated
and made available for use prior to the development hereby approved being
brought into use/first occupied and thereafter maintained at all times.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development and
H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

14.  The Developer, within one week of the commencement of development, shall
ensure that there is provision to be made for the parking on site of operatives' and
construction vehicles together with storage on site of construction materials. The
provision shall be retained and used for the intended purpose for the duration of
the construction period and that area shall not be used for any other purposes
other than the parking of vehicles and storage of construction materials
respectively.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision and material storage
arrangements for the duration of the construction period, in the interests of road
safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policy HT4 - New Development.

15.  No development shall commence unless and until details of surface water
drainage aspects have been submitted to and approved by the Local planning
Authority. This must include an assessment of potential SuDS options for surface
water drainage with appropriate calculations to support the chosen solution. The
approved scheme only shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details and thereafter maintained.

Reason. In order to meet the requirements of Chapter 10 - Meeting the
challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161
253-5320

Page 22



Viewpoints

LEigV]

D
D
cou

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

N
/
WE
/
S

1

Market Place
Ramsbotto

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN
Planning, Environmenta

ADDRESS: Land to the Rear Of The Grant Arms

APP. NO 58104

1250

| and Regulatory Services

m

Page 23



Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 24



Photo 3

Photo 4

..1.

Page 25



Photo 5

Page 26



LY od apo Busarn
b #0000 9)02 MoND 0} Nod
200 op'jo wp ey 10 powsop thod

OPIM LILIOOG| WSu puo ‘yun
ub o} yodiooy mau %,e\\gi
40 toro20f wpay: o Y
o, \
wowuld Bupjuy yIodhooy ouy o wund’

00 Bunspo oy) ubnosy Lom jo ybu |
10 U0RD30} SPAIDAIPU] DOID PAUIIDY

b

SHoum0? Growy 6 03 PR GEeTIe
veuyeapad pie P01 BUPING 16062 ¢
9 aj o1 uxp pue pEpuE SsaTE

v 2175 10 burzon
1 potuas 30 03 poGUTLE Bua b1 21 1 1

-

o (godiooy yuy Bups,
o oo ko

nog meu piing

S[oas| pasodoud = \rm.\@.\_ - .ﬂ

m_o>mﬂwc:m_xv = 8y I¥l

v

@

ATNO JWIHIS DNIJYISANY

0 3 X
Clamso puo wikoog o aupmu) [
2259 50a00)

wg'cel

00'¢ b | o oF—0g by Jer=ty anuy wnweqin|goe
00+ s | > 0£-0zZ WG We'0-g'0 SISURIDYO2 SG9H | DOF
00’y L T o) O¥—0¢ We'0—g'0 |K109 unyny eqey (00K
X ¢ T o] (Q)or—0t ybiy wanig| [pamny snyloWeD) |0Og
00T € K 2 09-0¥ ybly wg-g DOy SNUJOD|DZL

N bs/N |epE/RUp | 300y lue)s Joei | powids/H | ywio | by | wuog SwoN JuDld [N
sqnIys

SL'pL'LL'e'eL I | 00z-5£t Yby wy—g juojsuy sisusuisoqiD Djmeg | ¢
el'ot’Lr'eL b | 00Z-GZL 4By w/-g uolsenboor sian oimeg | g
g1'6'9's" 14 1 00Z-G41 4By wy—g JUBjsY|  efigios woeqeyum | S
N bs/N [efig/nuy | 100y |ueis Joeio | poouds /A | ywrg | eby | wuod owoN upld [N




(ued Jea wouy) g:q uoiras

N - S00030]
10} 'Ued 925 Sease vapied o) Gurdespue) #a

S A UGS LA O CLRIEDSPI ho
218 SO0 2 00[00 G U015
90 01 60xdo 1240 Bugdon a00rs ¢ i ‘boponUTSaD
14 44223 252 N 2 308150 pogeay 100118
porowide
20500 Jo0isper Ao Aisnopaid pajou s 00

3

salpids
U150 218 35243 KUOSI Q" 57 UNOUS S
R
P4 £ PRS0 0} 312 IOUP DUE SHODUN

sBojusdo
VNOIE BUIHERD DUOHS Uy LOAR42 10 U0 Shige)
HU0IS DaNgirsuos-a1 Bursn yjng iz sasnou Se

Aaub ) ‘sauadond 8s0fa synlg 0 Joar o3y Bra

Y0BY] [9ABI6 WOI) MaIA

203) X900 PEpIEDG 30F2 D1 ong
10 Sped 13803 Puin0;B i Pagy 0 0} 47 ofy pUE
Il AU U3A(30 {UHLXURL OF Gdespue] Ao

21 oA SE M0{CD i 300l
00) Do 1950 00K003 900 € UpH ONSU0
HEA A2 52 110G 112N o0 e Jo ey

“Ksnopead poy
52 20015 POSITO) SUGPUE! U] W0 0 0y uOeforl
“SBuPg 201 oty

269 'SP
120 0) 072 859U AU SIAHNY B SE s 50
NS e s
PUE UM, € UF POUSIU 0 O) FE 51009 D SHODUM
“pasaxic s
0 OISR K] 20 PUe J0g 1K, 3 01 SLO[AD
“s0ope) auols

“siued
0213p051 0] P NS LK) 1 52105 U0 SUGnY WS

WO[1226 WG| ‘Sod{OuMop 3,ents ik ‘3deyS 5O %
O SRHND PP 40810, 90 01 312 SHNCUNOP PUB SIAD

“PoADXICE D 10 foper,
A 501 00w ug J00) pomy 4828 B1Ei 59 04 001

e AT

DY D I3 LA e DU)29D S0ofs yeusy, 00t
YA UTISUES 1y SO0 2005 308) PRI PES0D
P RN P 190 2400 U0l € g ‘S Uspo
8 D043 001 RS 5] Lt 440

Suofredo]
201 "UEKd 335 S2IE UAPIRD ) BUIEISDLY AU

SU0ND UDIEW 01 00103 BUGKS 41 20 e
BUOLS PRIMIOI-21.30 01 SHID PUE SHULA] 00K

“v0y010xd ulew a4 o] 8 pan

Sl ans Ss3pAEs 4Q powodins ‘Bupsasy
1001 PRTED B Ingak SN0 (215 VY B 0] Addoues
PRI A 0] M0po

OB RpLS UJ0OLIS LM SIBUBE DoRpUo]

20 01 2.3530) SUOREASR YU SE oS ioen

“Pas0Mde fenbs 0

SUOISRIR 4 2 DU I00J3 YN 0 0 OK )
50U, HOJS PEITYSLO0-) o

D6 1oy o] o5 e spoued pascpust
10 pu 001 1) 0) 512002 U3 SN 3Lk
LRI L.

“saCKhunon et gy ‘sdeys 9 20 o1 Siard
PR P[0, 29 0 312 Sadidumop P sigpnd

BaNONE 109 0 A,
£4 5818 tooess nJo0s 2 Aeu e 40 ) pous

S00f1Ea0q
204 "0y 35 5,294 VR 0) DuNEISpUY Moy

O SR $2.00403 11 BuTS
00 Do 5240 BUKGD 00K © M GOS0
WA 23 521900 e 00 Gueq 100 1

"pouLe) oq
01400400 JRUTE S0150 o0 g POURO PR:ap0<)
0 0] 272 2604) SUONRAYS XURKY SE UMOLS D3N

“paccidde fenbe

0 OtSRIG 4G B PUE JN0J03 1, 3q 0} SU0rY)
“Hloot 2005

PAUMESUO-3. J0 UIS1B00 LODURS 01 TSTE PUE ‘Sjoumd
POTPR1 0] Pud B U0, D) SRLD U L0 TS

O3S (WAL 'SadKhOp WAL L 5eLs 50 o
of Bl pue 0exe 29 1 e SadKAHOD pue 2D

“pasauide [enbo 1o Layrery,
49 S2AM oows W jou pajp Aas e 2 01 fous

By -

%_Ni 58_

_ o
(1[em s1auurd ¢z wouy) 3:3 co_s%{w@ﬁ

.|NH: njep

2

=Y

uol)oas

4’z 1 wnjep|




wwn L -1} HYld B0 GNNOYD

~ v ‘ °
Noazoy ey
Aipuney
(2
s
¥Z = SINN TVI0L TVEIAD
ul e sunn oL
] v| ¢ 8
i
AEE
M| s e| s| 49 swu
LD
1paq
e e oo 11, pappe seaze S1110 0 1
NYId 40073 ISHl
7 [
G ,__v_
Lpq 208
noj 1
Suno|
SR IN 65
Sues J
Al [TLI]
@— P I uaN
n H
» IAS
150 . .
by ' i
1poq aluno) R | Rt U
L]
_J\r 73.. InVal
NY1d BO0' ONOD3S
= A
N Cl t
= 200 . Z0m
uno|
ebuno) ¥ A
e i ) ¢
SIElS
I I N s [(LITTI
9z m{ G2 | w HH w { Y& o |pom ¢ 2 Chm ]
N L TAS
1P = . 10 _ﬂ ounoj 1p .
» ) ) .
1peg o) U [| R L) IR
=
o AU Inval ™ I|_|
T =

Page 29



EEFIIIED

Drawing Ko 640

|.~w

PROPOSED AXONO-METRIC ELEVATION

AARKET PLACE, LAMSAGTTOM
[from Market laca)

Faited dovelopmeri)

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AT LAND OFF

The Erat Asms Helel,

Ramshatiom

pro

4 DAL Barnes,
Astim L1d,

181214

o |

a
o 092000000000
09”8858 00

Page 30




Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley tem 02

Applicant: McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Ltd
Location: Site of former Claremont Home, Park View Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1FA

Proposal: Erection of extra care accommodation for the elderly (Class C2 Use—Residential
Institutions) (62 units in total) landscaping and car parking.

Application Ref: 58105/Full Target Date: 28/01/2015
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The 0.65ha cleared site is situated at the junction of Bury New Road and Park View Road. It
was formerly occupied by Claremont Elderly Persons Home that has been demolished. The
site is characterised by a number of large mature trees on the perimeter of the site and the
site has a tree preservation order. The surroundings include St Mary's Park immediately to
the north and residential development to the south across Park View Road and across Bury
New Road to the west where the land is included in the St Mary's Park Conservation Area.

Planning permission (40304 & 41469) was granted to build a 6 storey residential block of 58
apartments (48 apartments and 10 penthouses) with a basement car park. The existing
building was demolished and some trees cleared but no further works were carried out. The
proposed development was amended to include duplex apartments on the third and fourth
floors and this reduced the number of apartments to 52 in total (43846). An extension of
time application (52395) for the apartment block was approved in July 2010.

Planning permission was granted in October 2011 for the erection of a four storey building
to contain 62 extra care residential units and providing 29 parking spaces.

The proposed development involves the erection of a four storey building to provide 62
extra care units. The proposed building would be constructed from red and cream brick,
artstone, grey timber cladding and white render with a grey concrete tile roof. 11 trees would
be removed from the site, with 4 being located on the perimeter. The site would be
accessed from Park View Road, which would lead to a car park of 38 spaces.

Relevant Planning History
40304 - Outline - residential development at former Claremont Elderly Persons Home, Bury
New Road, Prestwich. Approved with conditions - 26 March 2003.

41469 - Reserved matters - erection of block of 48 apartments and 8 penthouses with
associated basement parking at former Claremont Elderly Persons Home, Bury New Road,
Prestwich. Approved with conditions - 5 July 2004.

42905 - Addition of 2 roof mounted penthouses to proposed block of 48 apartments and 8
penthouses at Former Claremont Elderly Persons Home, Bury New Road, Prestwich.
Approved with conditions - 17 January 2005.

43846 - Residential development - construction of residential block of 36 apartments, 14
duplex (two storey) apartments and 2 roof mounted penthouses at site of former Claremont
Elderly Persons Home, Bury New Road, Prestwich. Approved with conditions - 12 May
2005.

52395 - Extend the time limit for implementation of planning permission 43846 for
Page 31



residential development - block of 36 apartments, 14 duplex (2 storey) apartments and 2
roof mounted penthouses at site of the former Claremont Elderly Persons Home, Bury New
Road, Prestwich. Approved with conditions - 7 July 2010.

54299 - Erection of extra care accommodation for the elderly (Class C2 use - residential
institutions) (62 units in total) landscaping and car parking at site of former Claremont
Elderly Peoples Home, Park View Road, Prestwich. Approved with conditions - 18 October
2011.

57796 - Erection of extra care and retirement living accommodation for the elderly (Class
C2 Use - Residential Institutions), landscaping & car parking at site of former Claremont
Elderly Peoples Home, Park View Road, Prestwich. Withdrawn - 3 September 2014.

Publicity

The neighbouring properties (5 - 8 The Terrace, 1 - 11 The Mews, 1 - 11 Thorndyke
Apartments, 1 - 5 (odds), 2 - 12 (evens), Sedgley Park Synagogue, Park View Primary
School, Park View Road, 1 - 18 Park View Court, 15 - 18 Rectory Grove, 39 - 51 (odds), 46
Rectory Avenue, 1 - 9 Belroy Court, 1 - 15 Belvedere Court, 1 - 25 Carrigart, 1 - 16 Hornby
Lodge, 1, 3 Prestwich Park Road, 171 Oakhill Court, 1 - 6 Princess Court, 5 Barnhill Road,
9 Eccleston Place, 4 Butt Hill Drive, 3 Butterstie Lane, 117 Prestwich Hills, 32 Meade Hill
Road, 7 Silverdale Avenue) were notified by means of a letter on 30 October and a press
notice was published in the Bury Times on 6 November. Site notices were posted on 7
November 2014.

19 letters of support have been received from the occupiers of 7 The News, 6 Belvedere
Court, 188 Summerseat Lane, 2 Beechwood Court, 283 Heywood Road, 17 Sedgley
Gardens, 6 Hilton Crescent, 13 Marton Grange, 20 Woodhill Grove, 7, 12 Barnhill Road, 16
Oakbank, 18 St Mary's Road, which have raised the following issues:

e The sooner it is built, the better.

The proposed development would fulfill a need in the area.

The proposal would be a good asset for Prestwich.

The proposed development would get rid of an eyesore in the area and would generate
revenue for the local authority.

The proposed development would be of high quality.

Support the proposed development.

The proposed development would free up family homes.

Hope to see the development commence early in the new year.

The proposed development would offer greater independence to its residents.

9 letters have been received from the occupiers of 27 Shelley Road, 229 Ainsworth Road, 5
Cotswold Close, 131 Albert Avenue, 19 Park Avenue, 3 Heys View, Park View Primary
School, which have raised the following issues:
e Would like to see a pelican or zebra crossing on Park View Road.
e There is too much traffic congestion. We should be lessening the impact, not adding
more traffic.
The location is not suitable.
e Careful consideration of the location of the entrance and exit is needed.
The safety of children during construction is of paramount concern as well as the safety
of parents at drop off and collection points.
Any increase in vehicles along Park Road would prove chaotic.
Safe parking along Park View Road would be compromised.
Construction traffic would be a nuisance to local residents.
There could be an impact upon the adjacent school car park in terms of building debris,
construction materials or tree felling.
e During construction, dirt and mud could be transferred to the school and local homes.

Page 32



The supporters and objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee
meeting.

Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to traffic
calming measures, footway and access improvements, boundary walls, visibility splays,
turning facilities and car parking.

Drainage Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to draiange
and SuDS.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No comments.

Environmental Health - Pollution Control - Comments awaited.

Waste Management - Comments awaited.

Environment Agency - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to
contaminated land.

Designforsecurity - Comments awaited.

United Utilities - Comments awaited.

Electricity North West - No objections, subject to inclusion of an informative in relation to
working near electrical apparatus.

GM Fire Service - Comments awaited.

Transport for Greater Manchester - Comments awaited.

GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to nesting
birds, tree protection measures, Japanese Knotweed and lighting and an informative in
relation to bats.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development
H4/1 Affordable Housing

H4/2 Special Needs Housing

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision
EN1/5 Crime Prevention

EN1/6 Public Art

ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value
EN7/2 Noise Pollution

EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting

CF1 Proposals for New and Improved Community Facilities
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities
CF3/1 Residential Care Homes and Nursing Homes

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs

RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision
SPD3 DC Policy Guidance Note 3: Planning Out Crime
SPD5 DC Policy Guidance Note 5: Affordable Housing

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Page 33



Principle - Following revocation of the North West Regional Strategy on 20th May 2013,
there is no statutory housing target for Bury. Work is in progress on Bury's Local Plan - 'The
Core Strategy', which will bring forward a new statutory housing target. It is currently
proposed that the new housing target in the Local Plan should be set at 400 dwellings per
annum, which is currently timetabled to be adopted in 2014.

In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year
supply of deliverable housing land.

Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a
proposal for housing development, including the availability of infrastructure and the
suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, the nature of the local environment and the
surrounding land uses and other policies and proposals of the plan.

Policy H4/2 states that the Council will encourage the provision of special needs housing
and it will be assessed with regard to the location of the site in relation to local shops, public
transport, health facilities and community facilities; the gradient on site; car parking; amenity
space and the design, layout and landscaping of the site.

The site is located within the urban area and there are residential properties to the west and
south. As such, the proposed development would not conflict with the surrounding land
uses. In the past, the site did contain a building, which has since been demolished and as
such, the site is previously developed land. There would be adequate infrastructure
available and as such, the principle of residential development is acceptable.

The site is located within walking distance of Prestwich town centre and is located adjacent
to a main bus route. The gradient of the site, car parking and design/layout of the site will be
assessed later in the report. Therefore, the proposed development is acceptable in principle
and would be in accordance with Policies H1/2 and H4/2 of the Bury Unitary Development
Plan.

Use, affordable housing and disabled access - The application proposals are for a Class
C2 Use - Residential Institutions specifically intended for the frail and elderly, typically of
over 80 years of age. The proposals are intended to operate such that the occupant's
maintain as much independence as possible by providing a wide range of community
facilities and care packages are bought and thus are tailored specifically for the individual
concerned, on site. The occupants would enjoy the privacy of their own home whilst
receiving appropriate levels of nursing care. Communal facilities would also be provided and
all parts of the building would be fully wheelchair accessible. Lifts would also be able to
accommodate the movement of beds in case of hospitalisation needs.

As the scheme is not a residential development under Class C3 - Residential of the Town &
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, there is no requirement to provide affordable
housing in line with Policy H4/1 - Affordable Housing of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.
However, as the proposals are for extra care housing units are within Class C2, thereis a
need to impose an occupancy control by a planning condition to prevent the potential
change of use to other uses falling within the same class (such as a hospital) which the site
would otherwise not be capable of accommodating materially different, significant demands
such as from traffic.

Private landscaped amenity space would be provided at the sides and to the front of the site
and would include seating areas connected via accessible footpaths. Room layouts would
be larger than 'standard' elderly accommodation to enable the provision of extra care
facilities to be provided.

Page 34



2 disabled parking bays would be provided within the car park, which would be acceptable.
Therefore, the proposed development would be accessible for all and would be in
accordance with Policy HT5/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Design and layout - The proposed building would be 4 storeys in height with a pitched roof,
which would match the buildings in the immediate locality. The proposed building would be
constructed from red and cream brick, artstone, grey timber cladding and white render with
a grey concrete tile roof. The mix of materials and the proposed balconies would add
interest to the elevations. As there is no consistent design approach to the buildings in the
immediate locality, the proposed development would not be unduly prominent feature within
the streetscene and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and CF1/1 of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

The proposed development would supplement the existing boundary treatments with 1.5
metre high railings in conjunction with an area of dense planting as indicated on the
landscape drawings. The eastern boundary would be marked by a 1.8 metre high close
boarded timber fence. The frontage along the westerly boundary would retain the dense
planting behind a wall and railings. A vehicle barrier has been added to the site plan and
other gates added to the remaining boundaries. Natural 24/7 surveillance by the occupants,
staff and CCTV should deter any nuisance by intruders. The proposed boundary treatments
would not be a prominent feature within the streetscene and would be in accordance with
Policies EN1/2 and CF1/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Amenity provision - Policy RT2/2 states that developers of new housing for 10 or more
dwellings will be expected to provide for the recreational needs of the prospective residents,
by providing and laying out recreational open space within the development. For larger
developments (50 or more), such provision should be provided on site, where possible in a
single plot.

The proposed development includes an area of amenity space of 907 square metres
surrounding the proposed building. The proposed amenity space would contain a series of
paths and seating areas, which would connect to the proposed building, car park and Bury
New Road. The landscaping plan indicates that there would be a substantial amount of
planting and patio areas would be provided to the ground floor apartments. Therefore, the
proposed development would comply with Policy RT2/2 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan and SPD1.

Impact upon residential amenity - There are no aspect standards for this type of
development. However, SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between residential
properties and would be relevant in this case. SPD6 states that there should be a minimum
of 30 metres between directly facing habitable room windows, which is based upon a two
storey building. For each additional storey in height, an additional 3 metres separation
should be provided.

There would be 24.7 metres between the proposed development and the gable elevation of
No. 11 The Mews, which would be in excess of the 19 metre separation distance required.
There would be between 47 metres and 53 metres between the proposed development and
the front elevation of Hornby Lodge, which would be in excess of the 26 metre aspect
required.

The proposed development would be adjacent to a public park and car park for the nearby
school. There would be between 18.5 metres and 33 metres between the proposed building
and the boundary of the site. As such, the proposed development would not impact upon
the privacy of the users of the park and car park respectively.

Therefore, the proposed development would not conflict with the aspect standards in SPD6
and would not have an adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring properties.
The proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and CF1/1 of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Page 35



Trees - The site is subject to a Tree Preservation Order and contains 62 trees, which are
mainly located on the periphery of the site. Many of the trees are mature and are located in
close proximity to each other. As such, some trees are inhibiting the growth of other trees. A
tree survey was submitted with the application, which indicates that 11 trees would be
removed as part of the proposed development. Of the 11 trees, only 4 would be located on
the perimeter of the site - 1 on the Bury New Road frontage and three would be removed to
form the new access to the site on Park View Road. Given that all of the 11 trees are in poor
condition, 3 trees of heavy standard will be planted within the site and that the maijority of
the trees on the perimeter would be retained, the proposed development would not have a
significant adverse impact upon the character and appearance of the locality. Therefore, the
proposal would be in accordance with Policy EN8 and EN8/2 of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

Bats - A ecological survey was submitted with the application and concluded that the
development site is of negligible potential for bat roosting, but is of moderate potential for
foraging by bats. The submitted plans indicate that 6 bat boxes would be located within the
existing trees and the proposed building to support foraging. GM Ecology Unit has no
objections to the proposed development, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to the
provision of bat boxes, nesting birds, Japanese Knotweed, tree protection measures and
external lighting. Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact
upon a protected species and would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.

Highways issues - The site was last used as a care home and there have been several
planning permissions on the site for apartments and most recently for extra care retirement
living accommodation. The submitted reports state that the proposed development would
generate less traffic than the previously approved proposals. This is based upon the age of
the proposed residents, who would require a degree of care and the applicant's experience
of developing other sites within the UK. The Traffic Section has no objections, subject to the
inclusion of conditions relating to traffic calming measures on Park View Road, access
improvements, visibility splays, turning facilities and car parking. Therefore, the proposed
development would not be detrimental to highway safety and would be in accordance with
Policies CF1/1 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Parking - There is no specific parking standards for this type of development within SPD11.
However, the maximum standards for sheltered housing, which is a similar use, is 1 space
per 3 units. This equates to 20 spaces.

The proposed car park contains 29 spaces, which would provide 21 residents and visitor
spaces and 8 staff spaces. The scheme is aimed at the elderly population who will require
an increasing level of care, which means that a significant proportion of the residents of this
scheme are unlikely to be car drivers as the average age is 85. It is anticipated that some of
the staff will live locally or use public transport and there are bus stops in close proximity to
the site. As such the proposals would not conflict with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan and SPD11.

Response to objectors

The issues of location, need and traffic generation have been addressed in the report
above. The issues of construction traffic and impact upon the school during construction are
not material planning considerations and cannot be taken into consideration.

Page 36



Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 0788/Topo, 1770-03-02, 1770-03-04,
1770-03-05, 1770-03-07, 1770-02-03, 1770-003, 1770-006, 1770-007, 1770-104,
1770-105, 1770-108 B, 1770-109 B, 1770-110, 1770-171 P1, 7542/01, 7542/02,
2056 01 A, 11/193/DE/100/001, TM6708 and the development shall not be carried
out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. The premises to which this approval relates shall be used for an extra care facility
(Class C2 - Residential Institutions) and for no other purpose (including any other
purpose in C2 - Residential Institutions of the Schedule to the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (or in any provision equivalent to that class in
any statutory intrument revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without
modification).

Reason - To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential
accommodation and in consideration of the likely traffic flows to and from the site
in relation to the extant uses in the vicinity of the site pursuant to policies CF1/3,
CF1/4 and HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

4. No works shall be carried out to the trees that would disturb nesting birds between
1st March and 31st August inclusive in any year.
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

5. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
Japanese Knotweed Management and Validation Report, dated 12 September
2012 for the eradication of Japanese Knotweed (Fallonica Japonica, Rouse
Decraene, Polygonum Cuspidatum).
Reason. To ensure that the site is free from Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan
Balsam in the interest of Policy EN9 - Landscape of the Bury Unitary Development
Plan.

6. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the installation of
the bat boxes on approved plans 1770-105 and 1770-007 has been implemented.
Reason. To maintain and enhance the biodiversity value of the site pursuant to
policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 — Features of

Page 37



10.

11.

12.

Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 11 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

A minimum of 5 working days written notice shall be provided to the LPA of
intended commencement of the development. The notification of commencement
shall include a timetabled schedule of the intended tree protection measures and
tree works. Any subsequent variation of the timetable shall be subject to further
written notice.

Reason - To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved plans, to protect trees which are of amenity value on the site and
pursuant to Policies EN8/1 — Tree Preservation Orders and EN8/2 — Woodland
and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

The landscaping scheme (plan reference 2056 01 A) hereby approved shall be
implemented to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority not later
than 12 months from the date the building(s) is first occupied. Any trees or shrubs
removed, dying or becoming severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased
within 5 years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size and
species to those originally required to be planted to the written satisfaction of the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policy EN8/2 — Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan..

No trees subject to a Tree Preservation Order, unless indicated otherwise on the
approved plans (2056 01 A, 1770-110, 7542/01, 7542/02) shall be felled, lopped or
topped before, during or after the construction period without the previous written
consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 — Woodland and Tree
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

The development hereby approved shall not commence unless and until the tree
protection measures identified on approved plans (7542/01, 7542/02) have been
implemented and all measures required by the scheme shall continue until the
development has been completed.

Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 — Woodland and Tree
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Prior to first occupation of the building, a timetable for the implementation of the
scheme for traffic calming measures on Park View Road between its junctions with
Bury New Road and Heywood Road on approved plan (TM6708) shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The traffic
calming measures shall be implemented in accordance with the agreed timetable.
Reason - To reduce the potential conflicts from vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists
within the vicinity of the site access on Park View Road and to ensure good
highway design in the interests of road safety pursuant to Unitary Development
Plan Policies HT6/1 Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement and HT6/2 -
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the
visibility, footway and access improvements on Park View Road indicated on
approved plan reference 11/193/DE/100/001 (but excluding the additional area of
land required to provide a 1.8m footway) have been implemented in full.

Reason - To ensure good highway design in the interests of road safety pursuant
to Unitary Development Plan Policies HT6/1 Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement,
HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict, CF1/1 - Location of New Community
Facilities and CF3/1 - Residential Care Homes and Nursing Homes.

Page 38



13.  The visibility splays indicated on approved plan reference 1770-03-02 and
11/193/DE/100/001 shall be implemented before the development is first occupied
and shall subsequently be maintained free of obstruction greater than 0.6 metres
in height.

Reason. To ensure the intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent
highways in the interests of road safety pursuant to Unitary Development Plan
Policies HT6/1 Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement, HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular
Conflict, CF1/1 - Location of New Community Facilities and CF3/1 - Residential
Care Homes and Nursing Homes.

14.  The turning facilities indicated on approved plan reference 1770-003 shall be
provided before the development is brought into use and shall subsequently be
maintained free of obstruction at all times.

Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Unitary Development Plan
Policies HT6/1 Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement, HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular
Conflict, CF1/1 - Location of New Community Facilities and CF3/1 - Residential
Care Homes and Nursing Homes.

15.  The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated
and made available for use prior to the development hereby approved being
occupied and thereafter maintained at all times.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

16. The external finishing materials for the proposal hereby approved shall be:
Edenhall - Runswick Multi Red

Portland - Artstone Bath

Redland Mini Stone Wold - Concrete Tiles Grey

Edenhall - Castle Cream Rustic

Grey Resin Based Timber Cladding

¢ Neaco - Grey Glass Balconies.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

17.  The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with
drainage layout plan - 24371-REV B. The drainage works shall be available for
use prior to the building hereby approved being first occupied.

Reason - To reduce the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a
satisfactory means of surface water disposal pursuant to Section 10 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

18.  The building hereby approved shall be constructed to a finished floor level of
81.900 AOD.
Reason To ensure that there would be no undue risk to protected trees and
pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253
5322

Page 39



Viewpoints

PRESTWIQ

0 PARK
al
O

y[uR[uNIA

-
—-
—

O /Tj\%‘. > ==F" |

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N

APP. NO 58105 J
~@~ E

ADDRESS: Site of former Claremont Home,

Park View Road, Prestwich

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services 1:1250

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 40




Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 41



Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 42



' : T ,.
SRR ML E
EE Eg £ gE OB Eg gagfgg § 5 gg
a5 >3 3 o ltEi
@0 @ & g el



_ sue|d Joo]4

L fon k]

Goamisaig

PpaOY MoN Ang
Buar] pegsisey

BusNOH BUAM JURLBIRRY
\_ ey f

J

Ennwam—.cre_-.—sivamroi»
ey o,
Kjoauq uBiseq
VETH “Wiv'E 958 4eQ 1D

JOO|4 Py L

Joo|4 154i-

JOO|4 PUNOCID

Page 44




R

mO.ﬂO-ONW._.‘..
R
FZLd3S = .

Y
suopens|y
{L.!IE\
Y
yamisaud
peoy meN Aing
Buin pajsissy
BuisnoH Bujan «.i:h.up.ﬁﬂ

ALY e LA et
e i i e o R e o et 4
[SETY eIt (b ary
PR SHANBN MR OIS | AR O

SyIjN 03

’

a—nﬂuna—o_o"_ursv!!'_nu!.
ushpuury Wap

Jojoenq ubizsg
VETY Ryg ogg &eg Y

#4926 - GUIPPID 8GN pasiq Les
Sy AN - SPOCES § TUSE
ORI - #pa0 Ly

OBUA TALA - SMOPUA

HOPURY LM N0 PuRy -y

souoaog s Ao - coan [ 9

Buppero sequny paseg ueey s L

Ny Wea) epse - ayueps L

taig ony sreouos - ot suas i ovoey [ ©

419 SUTISITY - PUWRIOY

PSY Wy yawvsuT - (|Biep3 l 3

(BH@1BI J0 Snpayag

- =)

uoneas|g YuonN

uoneAs|3 yinog

uoieAS|g JSaM

uoljeas|y jseg

Page 45



P4 edosipuD] wdj IuBuAdoD

v 10 950
UOMASY  3Quinu Duenx)  Jequunu Gof-
FLANT D0 MW 00ZL
%00 pepwa Wk zvemoss

(DACIdY Jo4
wvors

INOADT 9dpaspuUB]
wonduxeq

Yomisald ‘pDOY Man E:&
1ol

Quojs g AYDDIW

st
v e e
It o Sy o
fveNye edeospus) pa.eHEYD
adeospue| wd)

L woRera0888 U

SUVIDOSSY NOLTIOVHS

[T T rr———)

Do 59 0f Gery D

W4 4o sOpd p [0 Pl G o)
50psH Iplowow) pmudon

W5 100 (4 61 10 pojuyd ag
Oyt ang pacode:

510 660t
bt ou juayd 70 pajuDKA 04 b
4 B0 ADI0.£00u) porodory

A

o]
A (]

e et ]

AN punoUsIBELN Lk
Pon22% pUD DuRIIpUOY Yon 1104 5 04
‘IPIOFAIHS AADBH DL0E) WA W94 8

5100 1 v o)
a2 patodor)

LGUOILOD K2 0] L SUBISds omId)
1UBHIORI L. 5100 15/ Lt PejucKd 00 af
Oy $1I00iaH /AN Pesodaly

ol punospmin Y paindor

S B{UBIDLIG PSF ol

VIZVEE DU O S0 i portary
14653 0| 0{ 12461 1094 LORDULOYA Xm0
o400 o o 1081 DU

1V 70U U0 1 HBISUS 8o Bo{N
1691 U0} D] 1019, GACGI] UCHDLLO, Y B0 10
DOUO|G 50 0f 1001, Outng

»
$daoi L) peuDid g o)

2 v T T WG o
ﬁs‘meﬁ_ssn:zm issepuf: ond g x| 3 s oy o
ot cov x| 3 wis| g
ol oe x| 3 e s o
wfaw x| 3 En s
s x| 3l il g
wat| 3 o 1 g

w3 il oc anag

| 3 b3 o

wl 3 | e

o il x| 3 alu e
wwom x| 3 | os aours
NS x| 3 o p | 1 s
o | vy g

fo Fodd x| 3 v s quar
auoon x| 3 [ s
wwfare x| 3l =ale s
oy x| 3 | o
x| ) |y s

) ) )
v

CETSCPEILLrY

ilezezzrzzezed
7555935952228

Butinp seuwrns-Buyds 1nOBNOA( A

poued B

SUl O] WAOP 510D 1o maj 104| Ay
9Q PINOUS 584} 48 LIDSZ-0F UL "UOIIDIDAUSR JUBARKI O] (Syjuou ¢ Liniuyupu)
nbo; p

auy 2 lsu oyt
1B PRIGIDW 8 PINOYT 188 etN"§0100)
S Of Skl UNDO 41 YONON( PRIs|OM

UopIOB SYPpA D
S0 PRUOIOASP B Of BlY

10110 {idep 4y @) 0] AUONOI0N| 1910M PUD JO% 1510 01U AUO JUBLd :BUMSOM §

A *Buyjuoyd 1oy,

L, %99{|yo edoTpUD}
Usian 90100 50 paBDUOW
99 03 UoD|0BRA Oulisra

poads aq

“TIADLODUN KIOIIDS I
SIAI08 10 CYIDULYLIOS O] [2BKI0S SGARIS PUB 18A) 10 Uojys0d

DO A SUAILIDU |0]UMIDUIE 8RO WWIGE-L O YICAP UG Yl
1

"

STy BN 3 AN DBAUBLL O

B4 inoyBH

218801 #13A0P O Ul PRI 8 O] Buucyd 0BPaH |
K05 Uiow Y4IOR WALOSEX 00Y X 00F e © U pejuord 8q

noul

o1y joog 104

HOUS 5{0CSUBI PUD SANYS SAUM

H30I4I0 eaDBPUD
Uy POoIBD 50 peBouDW
20 0} UOYD40BaA Buysia

ol un Aeluios

PUD SIUDKsLOI YAMMS UMOIS JBUDIUGS |

) R T
o e LGS
13 ones
3 NG

5 0 50In0sd u| paild 8q o)
[2w/00Z) v anas Asworsiepun

@doaspup) Y peaNdo
D PAEDLBW PUD ¥304 100 0
0} |9Aud PUO AIOH *SIOWDAS
‘UIOYMOH 40 dnoiB Buysic

el sdompUD]
"1 umpoaiBo o pasouows
9q o} UoYO|9BaA BT

Zw/007) qw Qnus Ascjepun

N\

Page 46



Ward: North Manor [tem 03

Applicant: McClung Dunne Partnership
Location: Windacre Works, Mather Road, Bury, BL9 6RB

Proposal: Outline application for demolition of the existing buildings and redevelopment of the
site for residential development including means of access (All other Matters
Reserved)

Application Ref: 58133/Outline Planning Target Date: 30/01/2015
Permission

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The property is a stone mill building located off a narrow access track that runs from Mather
Road in a northerly direction, connecting once more at its northernmost end to Weaver
Drive. The mill is constructed with a number of 'northern lights' and there are a number of
openings along the westerly elevation fronting on to the access track. One section of the mill
structre is already a dwelling and therefore only part of the building would be demolished,
requiring any exposed walls of the remaining dwelling to be made good.

To the south of the site, parts of the former mill have been part demolished and to the east
of the site is a lodge. To the west of the site are detached residential properties with
gardens backing on to the access track. To the immediate north of the site, and attached to
the premises is a separate property.

The application is seeking outline planning permission for the demolition of the mill and the
redevelopment of the site for residential development. The means of access is also included
to be taken from mather road. All other matters including the layout, scale and landscaping
of the site are reserved matters.

The application is accompanied with an illustrative layout that indicates that the site can
accommodate 9 dwellings, but this could increase or decrease under the terms of this
application as the number of dwellings is not specified at this time.

Relevant Planning History

54011 - Conversion of former dyeworks to 8 dwellings - approved 24/8/11

44535 - Conversion of existing building into 6 apartments, new 3 storey block of 12
apartments - Refused 9/9/05; appeal dismissed 20/7/06

41506 - Residential apartments - Approved 21/1/04

Publicity

37 properties on the following streets have been notified: Cornfield Close, Thames Close,

Mather Road, Charnley Street, Windacre House, Wheatfield Close, and Egerton House

were consulted on 5/12/14. As a result of this publicity, 2 comments letters have been

received from Windacre House and 101 Mather Road. Points raised include:

101 Mather road

e No objections to the demolition and construction of new housing, provided that it is
carried out in harmony with the character of the area and this part of the river valley.

e Concerned about road traffic from the development conflicting with horse riders, walkers
and cyclists. Recent improvements carried out by a local individual has increased traffic
use.

e Their driveway is not visible to traffic coming down the road and is a potential hazard,

Page 47



which will be increased by more traffic.
e Traffic calming measures should be introduced.
e Cauthion concerning sewers and services mains in the unmade road.

Windacre House

¢ No objection in principle but considers that more information should be sought to ensure

that they are satisfied that their property would not be unduly affected.

The mill shares a party wall and notice should be served upon them.

It is not clear what would happen on the boundaries of the siteand the neighbour's land.

Some of the gardens would be minute.

There is a very high party wall on the southern boundary of the site which would have to

be lowered, which is not referred to in the application. Other parties have a land interest

and should be served notice.

e The access road is not wholly owned by the applicant. The owner of Windacre House
has resurface it in the past. Are the applicants now accepting responsibility?

These respondents have been notified of the Planning Control meeting.

Consultations

Traffic Management - No objections subject to standard conditions relating to prevention of
mud on the highway arising through redevelopment, highway safety provisions, handling of
the public right of Way on Mather Road, visibility provisions, parking and turning provisions
and road surfacing.

Drainage - No objections subject to a condition relating to treating surface water drainage
matters.

Environmental Health Contaminated Land - No objections subject to conditions relating
to land remediation.

Public Rights of Way Officer - No objections received.

Environment Agency - No objections subject to conditions relating to the design details of
floor levels, a surface water drainage scheme, the provision of safe routes into and out of
the site, a scheme relating to the reservoir cross walls and the provision of a raised defence
wall.

Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity - The application was submitted with a
Crime Impact Assessment written by GM Police. Any further responses received shall be
reported in the supplementary report.

United Utilities (Water and Waste) - No objections subject to a condition relating to
treating surface and waste water drainage matters.

Electricity North West Ltd - No objections in principle. There are ENW assets in close
proximity to the development site and care should be taken when working in such proximity
to protect the assets, apparatus and personnel. This includes a low voltage cable providing
supplies to an existing building in the site.

Fire Service HQ Greater Manchester - Any response received shall be reported in the
supplementary report.

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objections subject to conditions relating to an
Environmental Construction Method Statement be prepared for the development giving
details of measures to be taken to prevent any possible pollution of the adjacent water body
during the course of any demolition /construction works and That a Method Statement be
prepared giving details of measures to be taken to prevent the possible spread of invasive
plants during the course of the development.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/3 Water Pollution

OL5/2 Development in River Valleys

OoL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt

EC2/2 Employment Land and Premises

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
Page 48



H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development

HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs

RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development
EN7/3 Water Pollution

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

ENG Conservation of the Natural Environment

ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution

EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle - Policy EC2/2 — Employment Land and Premises - states that the Council will
seek the retention of existing employment land and premises outside the Employment
Generating Areas except where it can be clearly demonstrated that an existing employment
site or premises is no longer suited in land use terms to continued employment use. In such
circumstances consideration will be given to alternative development providing it does not
conflict with the character of the surrounding area and other policies and proposals of the
Plan.

The building whilst formerly has been used for employment purposes in the past. Since, the
Council has conducted its employment land review in preparation for the Core Strategy and
it is considered that the site is no longer considered suitable for employment retention. As
such the site can be developed for alternative uses.The site is unallocated within the Bury
Unitary Development Plan but lies within the River Valley under Policy OL5/2.

Policy OL5/2 - Development in River Valleys - confirms that within the River Valleys, new

buildings or the change of use of existing buildings or the change of use of land will not be

permitted. The only exceptions considered acceptable will be those where the development

would not lead to the division of the open parts of the valleys into sections and it falls within

the terms below:

e Where the area is designated as Green Belt the established Green Belt policies will
apply; or

e Where the area does not form part of the Green Belt, at least one of the following
circumstances is met:

e That the development represents limited infilling to an established valley settlement or
industrial area;

e Thatitis an extension to, or renewal of an existing industry, where the economic and
employment factors are of overriding importance;

e That the development is required in association with an outdoor recreation or
appropriate tourist facility;

e That the development is limited and will form part of, and be essential to, the
maintenance of the provision and improvement of public services and utilities;

e Any other development that would be appropriate in a Green Belt.

Following revocation of the North West Regional Strategy on 20th May 2013, there is no
statutory housing target for Bury. Work is in progress on Bury's Local Plan - 'The Core
Strategy', which will bring forward a new statutory housing target. It is currently proposed
that the new housing target in the Local Plan should be set at 400 dwellings per annum,
which is currently timetabled to be adopted in 2014.

Page 49



In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year
supply of deliverable housing land.

Policy H1/2 - Further housing considers that housing should be located where there is
adequate infrastructure, within the urban area, to accommodate new residential
development thus to minimise the pressure upon more peripheral open land and Green
Belt. The site is not within the Green Belt and is on the edge of the urban area., where there
is adequate services and infrastructure. As such, the site would be considered to be a
suitable one for residential purposes complying with the policy.

The redevelopment of this site has already been approved in the past, albeit that the last
permission has expired. The development would be limited in that the site is an already
developed brownfield site and is flanked by existing built development to both the northeast
and south. it would take place between existing buildings and is on the edge of an existing
urban development. The proposals would not appear to further encroach or subdivide the
river vally and is indeed constrained by the open water reservoir. On this basis the
development would comply with one of the consideration of policy OL5/2.

The site is in an area that is well served by existing infrastrucute and is in a relatively
sustainable location. The site is a brownfield site and not within the Green Belt. Given the
nature of the proposals, the status and location of the site, the redevelopment for residential
purposes is acceptable in principle.

Flood Risk - The site is located in close proximity to a reservoir and immediately to the
south of the building is a sluice. The proposals have been submitted with a flood risk
assessment and the Environment Agency have been consulted and duly responded. The
existing structures do require some redemial works and further flood defeces will be
required to be constructed in the event of over topping by water, such that there is no
additional risk created by the proposals.

The principles of the development described within the flood risk assessment are
considered sufficient to permit a positive recommendation to be made. The Environment
Agency have responded to this effect. However, there is a need for planning conditions to
ensure that the works that are carried out are done in an appropriate way, to a sufficient
level, at an appropriate time and to ensure that floor levels of the dwellings are set at such a
level so as not to be at risk from flooding.

On this basis the development would not conflict with NPPF Chapter 10 and UDP Policy
EN5/1.

Highways - Mather Road is unmade and unadopted for the extent that runs past the mill
that connects Weaver Drive to the north and with the adopted part of mather Road to the
south. Approximately 170m in legth. This unmade part of Mather Road is a byway, which
allows horse riding in addition to walkers.

In terms of red edge of the application and access considerations for which permission is
sought, UDP Policy H2/2, the development includes the unadopted highway that leads to
the site from the south. The access road is narrow and would not allow vehicles to pass
each other. However, the length of road involved would be such that there would be
adequate views of vehicles using the road without the need for further widening or passing
bays. Vehicular access points would be recessed into the building such that vehicles
entering the site or leaving the site would be clear of the access road allowing other vehicles
to pass or be seen.

Provision of a segregated footway on the westerly side of Mather Road abutting the site
Page 50



located clear of the existing public right of way;

Following consultation with the Traffic Section, they confirm that they are content with a
planning condition to require highway works to be carried out to provide suitable access to
the site, when approaching from the south. It is accepted that the access is narrow and
constrained development but a safe and useable access is achieveable without the need for
any widening works.

On this basis the development would not conflict with H1/2 and H2/2.

Crime and Design - The application as submitted is seeking the principle of the
development and the means of access. The application is accompanied with a Crime
Impact Report, which has been written by GM Police. The report has no objection to the
redevelopment of the site at this stage and sets out criteria that should be incorporated into
the detailed design at reserved matters stage. On this basis there would be no objection in
terms of UDP Policy H2/2 - The Layout of new Residential Development and EN1/5 - Crime
Prevention.

Recreation Provision - The development is not seeking specific numbers at this stage.
UDP Policy RT2/2 seeks provisions to be made for recreation provision in relation to
residential development. As such, there should be a condition requiring the inclusion of
recreation provision in the event of the development meeting the triggers for provision.

Affordable Housing - The development is not seeking specific numbers at this stage. UDP
Policy H4/1 seeks provisions to be made for affordable housing provision in relation to
residential development. Currently this is where development exceeds 25 units. It is
potentially conceiveable to include or layout the site with flats, which would be the most
likely way that such a density could be achieved. However this would only become clear at
the reserved matters stage. As such, there should be a condition requiring the inclusion of
affordable housin provision, in the event of the development meeting the triggers for
provision.

Ecology - The building has been assessed for bats and concludes risks to be low. The site
is also within a Wildlife Link and Corridor. Given these considerations, the proposals make
minimal changes to the site and the building such that there would be no impact upon
protected species or ecology. As such the proposals would not conflict with EN6/3 or NPPF
Chapter 11 para 118.

Contaminated Land - The site is currently occupied by former mill buildings partly used as
a welding workshop. Surrounding current land uses include open land, woodland, a
reservoir, a derelict works and residential housing. The site has historically been in use as
a Bleach and Dye Works with an associated reservoir, followed by a Bleach Works and a
Welding Works. Surrounding land uses have included an Agricultural Machinery Works, an
Engineering Works, a sub station, filter beds and filled land. The site is within 250 metres of
a landfill site and lies adjacent to a reservoir, which is used a fishing lodge. Pigs Lee Brook
is culverted to the south of the site. The site is situated above glacial till over the Millstone
Grit Secondary Aquifer. A private water supply is located appropriately 190 metres to the
south east. A Preliminary Risk Assessment and Site Investigation was carried out in 2005
and submitted to the Council for a previous planning application. Elevated levels of
contaminants and ground gas were found.

A Phase 1 Desk Study / Preliminary Risk Assessment Report and Site Investigation Report
have been submitted and assessed by the contaminated land section of Environmental
Health. Further investigation including ground gas monitoring has been recommended and
is therefore required by conditions.

Page 51



Other matters - The issues relating to party walls are private matters between the
respective parties. However, it would be necessary to impose a planning condition relating
to the way in which any exposed gable walls would be reinstated and appear.

The application is accompanied by Certification that demonstrates that the application has
been publicised to accommodate third party owners to come forward and register their
views on the proposals in terms of land ownership.

The layout shown is purely indicative and any future reserved matters application would
need to show the layout of the site. As such, comments relating to the gardens is not
relevant at this point.

The development proposals have no relevance in terms of assumed responsibilities of land.

Materials would need to be in character of the indigenous area and would form part of the
external appearance reserved matter.

Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. Applications for approval of reserved matters must be made not later than:

¢ the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the grant of outline
planning permission; and

e that the development to which the permission relates must be begun not later
than the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters
or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such
matter to be approved.

Reason. Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

2. Before the development is commenced, the applicant shall submit detailed plans
and particulars to the Local Planning Authority, and obtain their approval under the
Town and Country Planning Acts, of the following reserved matters; the layout,
scale, appearance and the landscaping of the site.
Reason. To ensure the satisfactory development of the site and because this
application is in outline only.

3. This decision relates to drawings numbered M14-26-03 rev 01, Designforsecurity
Crime Imact Assessment Version A 22/6/11, Leyden Kirby Flood risk
Assessment Ref: FRA 14 1037-01 Sept 2014, Ecology Services UK Ltd Report
dated 26/8/14, Leyden Kirby Phase 1 and Phase 2 Geo-Environmental
Investigation and Risk Assessment report, Design and Access Statement Oct
2014, and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the

Page 52



drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed within
the report.

No development shall commence unless and until:-

e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

e Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

e Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human

health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider environment and pursuant to

National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the

natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft
landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and
suitability for use on site. Proposals for contamination testing including testing
schedules, sampling frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as
determined by appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
any soil or soil forming materials being brought onto site, and;

The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory
evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc) submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development
being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

All instances of contamination encountered during the development works which
do not form part of an approved Remediation Strategy shall be reported to the
Local Planning Authority (LPA) immediately and the following shall be carried out
where appropriate:

e Any further investigation, risk assessment, remedial and / or protective works
shall be carried out to agreed timescales and be approved by the LPA in
writing;

e A Site Verification Report detailing the conclusions and actions taken at each
stage of the works including validation works shall be submitted to, and

Page 53



10.

approved in writing by, the LPA prior to the development being brought into
use.
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy
Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Notwithstanding the details indicated on illustrative plan reference M14-26-03
Revision 01, full details of the following highway aspects shall be submitted at first
reserved matters application stage:

1. Provision of a segregated footway on the westerly side of Mather Road
abutting the site located clear of the existing public right of way;

2. A scheme for improvement of the surface of Mather Road between the existing
limits of adoption to the south of No. 101 Mather Road to the northerly site
boundary;

3. Visibility splays in accordance with the standards in Manual for Streets at the
junctions of the proposed site accesses with Mather Road, with no obstructions
above the height of 0.6m within them;

4. Parking provision in accordance with the standards in Supplementary Planning
Document 11 Parking Standards in Bury;

5. Provision of adequate parking arrangements and turning facilities to enable
vehicles to enter and leave the site in forward gear.

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to the written satisfaction
of the Local Planning Authority before the development is first occupied.

Reason - To ensure good highway design, to ensure adequate off street car
parking provision in the interests of road safety and to minimise the standing and
turning movements of vehicles on the highway, all in the interests of highway
safety pursuant to UDP Policies HT6/1 - Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement, H1/2 -
Further Housing Development, H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development.

The Developer, within one week of the commencement of development, shall
ensure that there is provision to be made for the parking on site of operatives and
construction vehicles together with storage on site of construction materials. The
provision shall be retained and used for the intended purpose for the duration of
the construction period and that area shall not be used for any other purposes
other than the parking of vehicles and storage of construction materials
respectively.

Reason - To ensure adequate off street car parking provision for the duration of
the construction period in the interests of road safety pursuant to UDP Policy
HT6/1 - Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement.

Before the development is commenced, details shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority to cover measures to ensure that all
mud and other loose materials are not carried on the wheels and chassis of any
vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the
operations. The approved details shall be implemented and maintained thereafter
during the period of construction.

Reason - To ensure that the adjacent public right of way and adopted highways
are kept free of deposited material from the ground works operations pursuant to
UDP Policies EN7 - Pollution and EN7/1 - Atmospheric Pollution.

Page 54



11.

12.

13.

The elevations of the development shall be carried out using stone and slate.
Details and sSamples of the materials to be used in the external elevations,
together with details of type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is commenced.
Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the construction of the
development.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory
development pursuant to Policies OL5/2 - Development in River Valleys and
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury Unitary Development Plan.

The development shall not exceed the highest part of the Windacre House ridge
height adjoining the site.

Reason - The development is located within the river valley and to ensure that
the development retains the character of the area in terms of height and scale
pursuant to UDP Policies H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development, H2/2
- The Layout of New Residential Development and OL5/2 - Development in River
Valleys.

As part of the submission for reserved matters relating to the layout of the site,
details shall be submitted that shall show how the development permitted by this
planning permission accords with the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) by
LK Consult (FRA 14 1037-01) and shall clearly demonstrate the following
mitigation measures -

1. Limiting the surface water run-off generated by the development to 50% of
that produced by the existing site including the use of SudS and
demonstrated through the submission of supporting flow calculations.

2. Details and specifications relating to the repair works including the finalised
structure and land levels required for the provision of the raised defence
wall between the development and the reservoir spillway outlined in section

3.6.

3. Identification and provision of safe route(s) into and out of the site to an
appropriate safe haven.

4. Confirmation of the alterations to the existing reservoir cross wall as
outlined in section 3.6.

5. Details of the finished floor levels for the dwellings and proposed

topography of the land within the development site

The timing / phasing arrangements of implementation shall embodied within the

scheme and there shall be no occupation of the site unless and until the approved

mitigation measures have been implemented in accordance with the approved

details.

Reason -

1. To reduce the risk of flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage
of/disposal of surface water from the site.

2. To reduce the residual risks to the development.

3. To ensure safe access and egress from and to the site.

4. To reduce the residual risks to the development.

5. To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future

occupants.

pursuant to UDP Policy - EN5/1 - New Development and Flood Risk and NPPF -

Chapter 10 Meeting the Challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal
change.

Page 55



14.  No demolition shall commence unless and until a scheme relating to the demolition

methodology of the building in relation to the adjoining Windacre House has been
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. the scheme
shall include details of weather proofing any exposed areas of Windacre house
following demolition, a timetable of implementation and and restoration including
structural information and finishing materials. The development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved details.
Reason - To ensure that the remaining part of the adjoining structure remains
habitable and retains the visual character of the building pursuant UDP Policy
H2/1 - The Form of New residential Development and OL5/2 - Development in
River Valleys.

15.  Inthe event of the development comprising 11 uits or more, the development
authorised by this permission shall not begin unless and until the Local Planning
Authority has approved in writing a scheme to secure recreation provision, which
shall include a mechanism for delivery, in accordance with policy RT2/2 —
Recreation Provision in New Housing Development and its associated SPD1 —
Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision in New Housing development. The
scheme shall be submitted as part of the reserved matters application and the
recreation provision shall be delivered in full accordance with the approved details.
Reason - To ensure that the development would contribute to satisfying the need
for recreation provision pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policy RT2/2 -
Recreation Provision In New Residential Development and the associated
Supplementary Planning Document 1 - Open Space, Sport and Recreation in New
Housing Development.

16. Inthe event of the development comprising 25 units or more, the development
authorised by this permission shall not begin unless and until the Local Planning
Authority has approved in writing a scheme to secure Affordable Housing provision
as part of the development, which shall include a mechanism for delivery, in
accordance with policy H4/1 — Affordable Housing and its associated SPG5 —
Affordable Housing Provision in New Residential Developments. The scheme shall
be submitted as part of the reserved matters application and the affordable
housing provision shall be delivered in full accordance with the approved details.
Reason. To ensure that the development would contribute to satisfying the need
for affordable housing provision pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policy
H4/1 - Affordable Housing and the associated Development Control Policy
Guidance Note 5 - Affordable Housing Provision In New Residential
Developments.

For further information on the application please contact Dave Marno on 0161 253 5291

Page 56



Viewpoints

Further Davises

LEigV]

D
D
cou

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

N
A
WE
/
S

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

>

1

mu

=2

25

el

D 8%

- PE

W =5©

n s
S
Z B
A A
& A
< <

1250

Environmental and Regulatory Services 1:

Planning,

Page 57



Photo 1

Page 58



Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 59



Photo 5

Page 60



10 o
ok «

HE oIV oL
[

L) w

1 IS

“AUO TVOU IEHIVI Y 325
INOTRAX] TVIENCIER! GRS0J0U
SHEENOIVd 30 ONATO W

ety o e 0 e 5
@ O OTIO Sereeer; aereg youy YT ooy sty
SIDHUHDYY SEIVIOOSSY NNVIT I

oK POHOPGN J04D) PO POPDD USRS 10

= b
- ! ; :
T m
it i
: i . .
i 353 3 ({o]
._a . nnav
U{.\._ ATET e
. =
T =1

AluQ sasodingd aAnRensn||1




Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - Item
Ramsbottom

Applicant: Mr Brian Davies

Location: Higher Tops Barn, Moor Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NU
Proposal: Erection of agricultural Store and yard, entrance onto Moor Road
Application Ref: 58146/Full Target Date: 08/01/2015
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The site is in a remote, rural location on Holcombe Hill, within the Green Belt, West
Pennine Moors and Special Landscape Area. The area is predominantly moorland and
characterised by dry stone walls which separate the surrounding land and fields. The only
other residential property in the immediate vicinity is Higher Tops Farm, directly to the north.

The site comprises the dwellinghouse, Higher Tops Barn and a stable block and paddock
area, which are located to the south of the site and which are positioned at the top of a
field, adjacent to Moor Road. Access to the dwellinghouse is from Moor Road which is
classified as a bridleway and unadopted.

The site forms part of an agricultural holding and has a farm holding number with DEFRA.

The application seeks the erection of an agricultural store and associated yard/hardstanding
area, and formation of a new entrance onto Moor Road. Details are as follows:

Agricultural store - It would be 15m long x 10m wide x 4.35m high (150 sq m in area).
Elevations would comprise a 0.5m plinth of local stone with the remaining elevations clad in
Yorkshire timber with a green sheeted metal roof. It would be sited on the proposed
hardstanding yard area to the south of the stables on the south western area of the field and
site, adjacent to the boundary wall which runs alongside Moor Road.

Associated yard area - The proposed area would be 12.7m x 10m (127 sqg m in area). The
Design and Access Statement confirms the yard would be surfaced with a locally sourced
brown gravel. It would be used to park a tractor and vehicle and trailer used in association
with the agricultural holding.

Entrance to Moor Road - This would lead from the yard out onto Moor Road. The access
would be 7.9m long out of the site and comprise crushed hardcore to a depth of 600mm
overlaid with a brown limestone gravel. There is an existing land drain which runs along
the outside of the site boundary adjacent to Moor Road and a storm drain encased in
concrete would be constructed under the entrance area.

The site has a chequered planning history which is summarised as follows. Unauthorised
works have been carried out at the site, through the creation of a hardstanding and gate
enclosure and the formation of an access road from the hardstanding at the Moor Road end
of the site down through the field to Helmshore Road. Enforcement Action has been taken
against the unlawful development.  Two retrospective planning applications to retain the
development were refused and an appeal has been dismissed. The development remains
unlawful and the Enforcement Notice still stands. Failure to remove the track will result in
further action being taken by the Enforcement Section.

See planning history below.

Page 62

04



Relevant Planning History

55864 - Retrospective application for the change of use of land from agriculture to
hardstanding for the parking of vehicles and trailers (in connection with the use of the
stables at Higher Tops Barn) and retention of access track (resubmission) - 03/09/2013
46659 - Two stables with associated tack & food store room - Approve with Conditions
05/09/2006

55296 - Retrospective application for the change of use of land from agriculture to hard
standing for the parking of vehicles and trailers (In connection with the use of the stables at
Higher Tops Barn) and formation of access track. - Refused 13/08/2012

55864 - Retrospective application for the change of use of land from agriculture to
hardstanding for the parking of vehicles and trailers (in connection with the use of the
stables at Higher Tops Barn) and retention of access track (resubmission) - Refused
25/01/2013

57106 - Erection of agricultural store, 2 no. mobile hen shelters, retention of private way and
hardstanding for agriculture - Withdrawn - Invalid 20/03/2014

57685 - Erection of agricultural store and yard, entrance onto Moor Road (resubmission) -
Refused 20/08/2014

Publicity

7 letters sent on 14/11/2014 to properties at Hillcrest, Lower Dickfield, Higher Dickfield,
Highfield House, Lower Tops Farm all Helmshore Road; Higher Tops Farm, Harcles Hill
Farm Moor Road.

One letter of objection received from Hillcrest, Helmshore Road, which raises the following

issues:

¢ Do not understand the need for such a large agricultural store when the land left would
not sustain more than 10 sheep, as well as the horses;

¢ 10 sheep would not create much employment or make much difference to the
applicant's business;

e Is it the true intention of the building to house the existing vehicles?;

e If granted, can a condition be included to remove the eyesore of a road in this field?

A lengthy objection has been received from Higher Tops Farm. The letter is available to
view on the public file. The objection is also accompanied by photographs of the site and
letters of correspondence received from the applicant's agent on behalf of their applicant
regarding the proposals, and the responses from the objectors at Higher Tops Farm to the
agent. The correspondence was exchanged prior to the submission of the application.
Issues raised by the objectors to the planning application are as follows:

o Critical of some of the answers on the application form (questions answered incorrectly,
skeptical of some answers, etc)

e Plans are not detailed to show the true existing situation, including omissions, anomalies
and level discrepancies for the new access;

e Rights of way - There are no written rights of way in the title deeds in favour of the Barn
for this section of Moor Road and we would no way grant consent for such a
development;

e Question how the development is going to be built with the number of wagon trips
needed - would this be from Helmshore Road?;

e Design and Access Statement - discrepancies including lack of access arrangements for
the stables.

e The size of holding would make for a hobby farm but not a viably commercial enterprise;

e The store is close to existing water sinks and culvert - already drainage issues on the
site;

e The store is too large/high for a few sheep - so what is its use going to be?No detail of
structural materials;

e Why is the yard needed if not for private residential use and equestrian purposes? This
amount of hardstanding is excessive for parking a tractor and trailer;

e Details for a new access onto Moor Road are not only flawed but unacceptable and
environmentally wrong;

Page 63



e Planning policy - is the development reasonably necessary;

e The past applications have changed tact that quickly it shows there is no real farming
plan only an intent to get what they want;

e Applicant has spent over 4 years claiming Moor Road is an unsuitable access, but now
its the desired route;

e Have applied for a Holding number to apply under the banner of agriculture to get it
passed;

e There are more suitable areas of land on which to create a private yard area for both
residential and equestrian use.

The objectors have been informed of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Consultations

Traffic Section - No objection in principle. Recommend there shall be no direct means of
vehicular access between the store and yard and Helmshore Road.

Drainage Section - No objections subject to a condition to provide details of surface water
drainage aspects.

Environmental Health Contaminated Land - No comments to make.

Environmental Health Public Health - No comments to make

Public Rights of Way Officer - No objection.

Environment Agency - No objection

Environmental Health Pollution Control - No comments to make.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

OL1 Green Belt

OL7/2 West Pennine Moors

EN9/1 Special Landscape Areas

OL4/5 Agricultural Development

OL1/5 Mineral Extraction and Other Dev in the Green Belt
EN1/1 Visual Amenity

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

HT2 Highway Network

HT4 New Development

SPD8 DC Policy Guidance Note 8 - New Buildings in the Green Belt
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies - Paragraph 28 of the NPPF supports a prosperous rural economy, stating that
planning policies should support economic growth in rural areas in order to create jobs and
prosperity and take a positive approach to sustainable new development. Plans should
include support for sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas,
both through conversion of existing buildings and well designed new buildings and should
seek to promote the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based
rural businesses.

Chapter 9 of the NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land - All development in the Green Belt is
inappropriate development unless it falls within the exceptions listed in paragraphs 89 and
90. One of the exceptions applies to new buildings in relation to agriculture. Paragraph 90
regards engineering operations not to be inappropriate development in the Green Belt

Page 64



providing it preserves the openness and does not conflict with the purposes of including
land in it.

UDP Policy OL1/2 - New buildings on the Green Belt are inappropriate development unless
for a purpose including agriculture and forestry, essential facilities for outdoor sport and
recreation, limited extension, alteration or replacement dwellings and limited village infill.

UDP Policy OL4/5 - Agricultural Development - Development, building or structures which
require planning permission will be permitted providing they are sited and designed in such
a manner as to minimise their visual impact on the landscape having regard to height,
materials, landform and landscaping; relate well to existing buildings and not have an
unacceptable impact on the amenity of the neighbouring dwellings.

OL7/2 - West Pennine Moors - The Council will control development and manage
recreational activity and public access, so as to reduce any possible detrimental effects this
may have on the important character of the are. Implementation will not only focus on the
control of development and the management of recreation and public access, but also
measures to enhance the environment.

EN9/1 - Special Landscape Areas - Any development which is permitted will be strictly
controlled and required to be sympathetic to its surroundings in terms of visual impact.
High standards of design, siting and landscaping will be expected. Unobtrusive
development will not be permitted in such areas.

Principle -

Agricultural store - Paragraph 89 regards the construction of new buildings in the Green Belt
as being inappropriate development. Exceptions to this are buildings for agriculture and
forestry. The proposed agricultural store would therefore be acceptable in principle.

Impact on the Green Belt by virtue of its of the siting, size and design is considered in the
report below.

Hardstanding yard area - The hardstanding would be considered an engineering operation
under Paragraph 90 of the NPPF and not inappropriate development in the Green Belt
providing the openness would be preserved and the proposal would not conflict with the
purposes of including land in it.

Impact on the surrounding area and the Green Belt -

Agricultural store - The building would be sited at the top of the field but it is considered not
to form a significant structure on the skyline when viewed from Moor Road. This is partly
due to the design, which would incorporate a sloping pitched roof when viewed from the
east and Helmshore Road, and would therefore appear to 'sit' into the contour of the land
rather than the building appearing 'perched' on top of the hillside.

The store would be modest in design and similar to other buildings found in agricultural use,
comprising materials of a plinth of local stone, timber boarding elevations and a green
sheeted roof. The proposed materials would be acceptable and sympathetic for a use as
an agricultural store in a rural area, and appropriate with regard to the building's location.

The proposed building is considered to be of a reasonable size and scale for an agricultural
store. It would be positioned as part of a group of buildings adjacent to the stables. The
guidance in SPDS8 relating to siting of buildings as clusters has been followed.

As such, it is considered that the position, size and design of the store would be acceptable
within the setting of a rural location and would not cause detrimental harm to the character
of the Green Belt. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with the NPPF, UDP
Policies EN1/1, EN9/1, OL1/5, OL4/5 and SPD 8.

Hardstanding yard area - The applicant has taken note of the LPA's comments and
concerns which have been raised about the extent of hardstandings previously applied for,

Page 65




and which have been refused on a number of occasions. The area of hardstanding in this
application would be 127 sq m which is significantly smaller in size compared to the
preceding application which proposed a hardstanding area of 765 sq m, and which was a
reason for refusal on application reference 57685. The yard would be surfaced with locally
sourced brown gravel which is considered to be an appropriate surfacing commonly found
in rural locations.  The area which is hatched on plan drawing number BD RE-SQ would
be returned to a grassed paddock area and this would also be included as a condition.

The hardstanding would be used to access the store building and for the parking of a
tractor and vehicle and livestock trailer to be used in conjunction with the agricultural
holding. A condition would be attached which would restrict the use of this hardstanding
area for the parking of vehicles in association with agricultural purposes only, and not for the
parking of domestic vehicles.

As such, it is considered the proposed hardstanding would not be excessive in area and
would be an appropriate size fit for purpose. It is considered the hardstanding would not
cause harm to the openness and character of the Green Belt and as such would comply
with the NPPF, UDP Policies EN1/1, EN9/1, OL1/5, OL4/5 and SPD 8 and 10.

New access - This would require the removal of a section of the dry stone wall which runs
adjacent to Moor Road. The opening would be 4m wide and would be similar to other
openings into farms or agricultural holdings which are found in the countryside. The access
would comprise crushed hardcore overlaid by local brown limestone gravel, similar to the
proposed yard area. The verge would be re-grassed and graded to the existing level.

As such, it is considered that there would not be any harm caused to the Green Belt by
virtue of the relatively minor opening in the stone wall which would be created.

Access - Following the refusal of previous applications to access the site from Helmshore
Road, (and dismissed on appeal), the applicant was advised to explore an alternative
access from Moor Road.

It is proposed to open up a section of the dry stone wall to facilitate a new access into the
site which would lead directly to the proposed yard area. A 6m radii for visibility purposes
onto Moor Road would be incorporated and entrance would be fenced off by a 1.1m high
farm gate.

The Highways Section are satisfied with the details of the plans and have raised no
objection to the proposal on this basis. They have, however, recommended that there shall
be no direct means of vehicular access between the store and yard and Helmshore Road.
Access from Helmshore Road does not form part of the proposal and it cannot be surmised
that this would be the case.

The proposed access from Moor Road would require consent from the owners of Higher
Tops Farm, as this part of the application site is within their ownership. In view of the third
party land owner's objection, it may be the case that this consent may not be granted by
them. This is not a material planning consideration and the proposed development is
assessed on planning policy and planning merits only, rather than land ownership issues.
However, as access is being applied for from Moor Road, it would be prudent and sensible
to ensure the site could be accessible from this route, before any other part of the
development is commenced or brought into use. As such a condition would be attached
that should the development be approved, the access would be made available prior to the
storage building/hardstanding being built/brought into use. This is considered to be
reasonable as there are no other safe alternative access given the history of the site and the
concerns raised in previous application by the highways section and the Planning
Inspectorate.

Residential amenity - The development would be located to the south of the neighbouring
property, Higher Tops Farm, set behind both the applicant's house and stables and it would
therefore not be readily visible from the neighbour's property. The proposed access road

Page 66



from Moor Road would not encroach the neighbour's curtilage.

As such, it is considered the proposal would not be detrimental to the visual amenities of the
neighbouring property.

The issues which involve land ownership and covenants/deeds on land are not material
planning matters and would be private issues between the two parties.

Drainage - The objector raised concerns about existing drainage issues on the site which
would be exacerbated by the proposed development.

The applicant has not submitted details of a proposed drainage scheme.

The Drainage Section have been consulted on the application and raise no objection
subject to a condition that surface water drainage aspects are submitted, to include SuDS
options, as well as a scheme to incorporate solutions to address run off problems on Moor
Road. The details will be required prior to the commencement of any development.

Details of the treatment of waste and any by-products associated with the agricultural use
would be included as a condition.

Response to objectors -

Response to Hillcrest -

e The number of livestock relating to the agricultural holding is not a material planning
issue and would be considered under separate legislation.

e The plans show the building would be used for storage purposes and the yard for the
parking of cars associated with the agricultural use only.

e The unauthorised access track does not form part of this planning application and is
subject to separate enforcement action.

Response to Higher Tops Farm -

e Forthe purposes of the planning application, the application form contains the
necessary correct information required for the submission. Matters relating to the
provision of drainage and waste storage can be conditioned.

e Revised plans have been received with the correct building dimensions and layout.

e Land ownership and consents over private rights of way are not material planning
considerations.

e The discrepancies in the Design and Access Statement referred to question the
acceptability of the proposal, size of hardstanding and store and its genuine use,
numbers of proposed livestock and outstanding unauthorised works.

e The issues of drainage have been covered in the above report.

Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 67



Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

1.

The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.

Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

This decision relates to drawings numbered Red edge location plan BD RE-SP;
Detailed Master Plan (re-seeded) BD RE-SQ; Rights of Way Plan BD 02B; Master
plan BD 02; Visibility Splay onto Moor Road BD 04; Proposed cross sectional
drawing showing access off Moor Road BD REV-ST; Agricultural store (Elevations
and Plan) BR 01 (Revision 4); Design and Access Statement and the development
shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

No development shall commence unless and until details of surface water
drainage aspects have been submitted to and approve by the Local Planning
Authority. This must include assessment of potential SuDS options for surface
water drainage with appropriate calculations to support the chosen solution. The
scheme should incorporate solutions which address run off problems on the
adjacent unadopted road taking active steps to reduce flows in this direction. The
approved scheme only shall be implemented and thereafter maintained.

Reason. To ensure satisfactory arrangements for the treatment of surface water
drainage pursuant to Chapter 10 - Meeting the challenge of climate change,
flooding and coastal change of the NPPF.

The hardstanding indicated on plan BD RE-SQ (Detailed Master Plan) shall only
be used for the parking /storage of trailers and agricultural vehicles in association
with the agricultural building hereby approved. It shall not be used for the
parking/storage of any domestic vehicles.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to protect the openness of the
Green Belt pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies EN1/1 - Visual
Amenity; OL1/5 - Mineral Extraction and Other Development in the Green Belt,
EN9/1 - Special landscape Areas and SPD8 - New Buildings and Associated
Development in the Green Belt.

No development shall commence unless and until details of the alterations to the
existing wall, indicated as a dry stone wall to be retained (as shown on plan BD
RE-SQ), have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved details only shall be implemented and maintained thereafter.
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity pursuant to Bury Unitary Development
Plan Policies EN1/1 - Visual amenity, EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, OL1/5
- Mineral Extraction and Other Development in the Green Belt and SPD 8 - New
Buildings and Associated Development in the Green Belt.

Any field gate/opening or other form of access from the development site hereby
approved on plan BD RE-SP, to the field to the east, shall not be used for
domestic purposes.

Reason. In the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development
Plan Policies HT2 - Highway Network and HT4 - New Development.

Page 68



7. Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995, as subsequently amended, no development shall be
carried out within the terms of Schedule 2, Part 6, Class B (a), (b), (d) and (e).
Reason. To ensure that future inappropriate development does not occur pursuant
to policies of the Unitary Development Plan listed.

8. The agricultural store and hardstanding hereby approved shall be used for storage
purposes only in association with the use of the agricultural holding. The
agricultural store and hardstanding comprising the development for which
permission is hereby granted are required to be respectively removed within 3
months of the development hereby approved ceasing use for agricultural purposes
and the land reinstated to its former condition as a grassed field/paddock within 3
months.

Reason. To ensure appropriate use of the storage building hereby approved in
the interests of preserving the openness and character of the Green Belt pursuant
to Bury Unitary Development plan Policies New Buildings in the Green Belt and
SPD8 - New Buildings and Associated Development in the Green Belt.

9. The dotted area on plan BD RE-SQ labelled as "Returned to grass" and indicated
within the red edge site on plan BD RE-SP shall be returned to a grassed area and
thereafter maintained, within 3 months of the commencement of the development
hereby approved. The works to return the area to grass shall include the removal
of the existing hardstanding and any base layer.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to preserve the character of the
Green Belt pursuant to Bury Unitary Development plan policies OL1/5 - Mineral
Extraction and Other Development in the Green belt, EN1/1 - Visual Amenity and
EN9/1 - Special Landscape Areas.

10. The proposed access from/to Moor Road hereby approved shall be implemented
and be available for use, prior to the commencement of any other part of the
development hereby approved as shown in plan BD RE-SQ.

Reason. To ensure the site can be satisfactorily accessed from Moor Road in the
interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies
HT2 - Highway Network and HT4 - New Development.

11.  No development in relation to the agricultural building shall commence unless and
until details for the provision of the storage and treatment of waste and
by-products associated with the use of the agricultural store hereby approved has
been submitted for approval by the Local planing Authority. The approved
scheme only shall be implemented following the implementation of the use of the
agricultural building hereby approved, and thereafter maintained.

Reason. To control environmental nuisance and minimise pollution levels
associated with the development hereby approved pursuant to Bury Unitary
Development Plan Policy EN7 - Pollution Control.

12.  The agricultural store hereby approved shall only be constructed of the materials
hereby approved on plan BR 01 (Revision 4) and none other, either externally or
internally, and thereafter maintained as such.

Reason. To ensure the building is only capable for use for agricultural purposes
only pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies 4/5 - Agricultural
Development and OL1/5 - Mineral Extraction and Other Development in the Green
Belt.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161
253-5320

Page 69



Viewpoints

r——\ Pumping Station

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 58146 ‘ D g
ADDRESS: Higher Tops Barn / Eﬁy
Moor Road s BoUNGIL

Ramsbottom
Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services 1:1250

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 70



Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 71



Photo 3

Page 72



S
M v wopnoqsurey ‘peoy J00JN ‘PIex 1 21018 [eanymoLidy - ureq sdoJ, 19ySty
€
= L 77 1 $856%0 TOLLO - N ue[d uoeoo]
I SSEVINEY AX/AA/NR £V @ WwoSzs:1 &V @ 0S2T 1 :9[eds Juowegeuey eIy 4d
ﬂ SNOISIATI I9A1,] prae( :Ag umerq

/
Moor Road

weg
sdog, oySiH

Page 73




£

ZSIOWPN ST

S
m ¥ wonoqswey ‘proy 100N ‘PIex R 21018 [RINMMOLISY - wieg sdog, 1oy
€
=~ T S PR | oA |1 ¥856v0 T0LLO - I (popoes-0y) ue[d 1eISEIN Pa[reIed
t SSRVINTY XA/AA/WN £V @ Wwwooz:T £V @ 00g T :9[eds JuowaSeury eIy Jd
38 SNOTSIAT 1oA1g prae( :Ag umelq
/ Paue1ay [feMm Sunsxy
(eo1A108
Suruued
Aq prepuels
01 pausiso()
IPEI 219W9
Surpueisprey
ZSTOIN LeT
I9pROT 103RL], SIEDIUSDOOM
<
N~
()
(o))
aPIYaA bxb Dnm
I9[IRI) YD0)SIAIT
sseIg 0] pauInay
poaurelal [em
auo3s A1q
Kepp a[pug _ — —
urelq wioyg pedyy -~ —————-———-—
[[em a2u03s A1p
Yim paoejdal
Ao Mo uadQ Surouoy [e1RIN Surpueispreyq



woneqswey ‘peoy J00| ‘PIex X 210)g [eImynousy - uteq sdog, JoySIH

O PIPPS [P pUV 36 Ty

=
a mbar UaLim K110
) | D o T e ] I P 2101g [eImynoLdy pasodold pue [[em Sunsixa ‘peoy I00J
CO._ o o501 EVOWWSLIT Sy @ SL 11 sos uﬂh%mm znm,:_x.m ﬁ o sse00y Jumoys Suimel(q [euonoag ssox) pasodoig
SNOISIATY 10417 plaeq :Ag umeiq
Va1
Jo [eao1dde oty 03 pard
US| UMOI] PAIINOS
[e20] - pre£ [eIn)noLISe
3} 5B dures 8y} aq 0}
[BLIDJEUI) JUa1peId %6 0)
juawdo[osap pasodoxd
ul Yoea} sseaoy
Vd'T (3 pasude se uonIpuoo
spremyses Jurdojs Aq usisap pue Sunys oswaad aveuIEIp
%€ yuatpess prex u0g 0} adid ure1p uuo)g
2)010UCd
Ul pasesus .
YP0pped pue(sseid o) paioisay URIP ULO}S -
1pdap unog
Jjooppeq pue piex unsneg / 0] 100pIBH]
paysLI)

68 uLie) pIepuE)s & € paoe[dar aq [
Buruado oy, Juiod $59008 I JOJ PajERID
Butuado we puw paurelal [lem Supsxyg

W3RY ur woT'T 03




g
salae(] ureag I 1o] wreg sdoy, 1o
= : I 1aeq upeIg 4 10 ureg sdog, JouSiH o
o] v ® oort s o (UIe[d 23 SUONRASTY) 210} [eInyNOLISY
o SRAVAEL ajaa/mn | | St aMuag) UONRADUU SYL,
= JuRweBeuRpy Iy A
SNOISIAZY g Fupaarq
N aderoyg Surppag
woo's sesodmd Aipueqsny 20)
! Aeq SuipjoH [ewiuy
stoti]
Lo e
afmiogg yueurajdury av103g nispsag
urjd Jo0[q

UWONEAI[F ISOM.

_ UOLS [B0]
et
ke
1 )
{ Suipreog anysytox
||
spaueg ay1sodwo) uasin
UONRINUSA
UONBAI[H YIION
w oo.oﬁ, — % ,
N
@ w»
5 g
w e
7 |8
] &
g g

UWONEAI[H [ANOS

uoneAa[y 1sesq

Page 76



Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Item 05

Applicant: Mercedes-Benz Retail Group UK Ltd
Location: Mercedes Benz, 845 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9TP

Proposal: Erection of 17 no. column mounted lights and 4 no. wall mounted lights in the
dealership car park/display area, 27 no. wall mounted lights on the roof-top car park
and provision of a low level wall and railings along the Manchester Road site frontage

Application Ref: 58184/Full Target Date: 14/01/2015
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The site was last used for car sales with a hardstanding, which was used for car parking.
There are two accesses onto the site, which are adjacent to Nos 837 and 853 Manchester
Road respectively.

In October 2013, planning permission was granted for the demolition of the existing building
and the erection of a new sales/after sales building, which would be used for a variety of
uses including car sales, sales of parts/accessories, car valeting, car repair, MoT testing,
storage, body repairs and car sales office. The existing southern entrance would be
reconfigured and the northern entrance closed. Works have commenced on site and are
ongoing.

The site is bounded by residential properties to the north, southwest and west and there is a
synagogue to the south. There is open land to the east with residential properties beyond
and Bury golf club is located to the north east.

The proposed development involves the provision of a low level wall and railings along the
frontage to Manchester Road and external lighting on site:

e 17 column mounted lights (6 metres in height);

¢ 4 wall mounted lights in car park/display area

e 27 wall mounted lights in roof top car park.

The proposed wall would be constructed from a dark grey brick with stainless steel railings
above. The height of the wall and railings would vary between 1.8 and 1.1 metres given the
topography of the land.

Relevant Planning History

56517 - Demolition of the existing garage building and the comprehensive redevelopment of
the site to provide a new car dealership, with workshop for MOT testing, servicing, car part
sales and other car-related activities including the construction of a new (4, 789 sqm)
stand-alone sales and after-sales building and workshop, car parking and a reconfigured
vehicular access/egress from the Manchester Road at 845 Manchester Road, Bury.
Approved with conditions - 16 October 2014.

57100 - Non material amendment following grant of planning permission 56517 for
amendments to the cladding of the exterior of the building at 845 Manchester Road, Bury.
Approved - 6 February 2014.

57266 - Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 56517 for

Demolition of the existing garage building and the comprehensive redevelopment of the site

to provide a new car dealership, with workshop for MOT testing, servicing, car part sales

and other car-related activities including the construction of a new (4, 789 sqm) stand-alone
Page 77



sales and after-sales building and workshop, car parking and a reconfigured vehicular
access/egress from the Manchester Road:

1. Amendments to front elevation to remove front columns and simplify glazing

2. Reposition building to bring forward approx. 1M (west) and approx 1M left (north)
at 845 Manchester Road, Bury. Approved - 24 February 2014.

57846 - 2 no. internally illuminated fascia signs, 3 no. internally illuminated free standing
signs, 1 no. internally illuminated open star logo sign, 1 no. non illuminated free standing
entrance sign and 3 no. non illuminated flag pole signs at 845 Manchester Road, Bury.
Approved with conditions - 9 October 2014.

Publicity
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 21 November 2014.

2 letters have been received from the occupiers of 27 Ajax Drive and 10 Sandy Close,

which have raised the following issues:

e The light pollution from 17 column mounted lights would be severe.

e The proposed building is higher than the previous building and the roof parapet is not
high enough to obscure vehicles.

e Like to see a small upstand at the back side of the parapet. This would not be visible
from the road but would obscure vehicles from Sandy Close.

e The previous car dealership switched off the lights at close of business and would like to
see this happen again.

Consultations
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to informatives relating to the boundary wall.
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - Comments awaited.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

EC6/1 New Business, Industrial and Commercial
EN1/1 Visual Amenity

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN1/5 Crime Prevention

EN1/7 Throughroutes and Gateways

ENG6 Conservation of the Natural Environment

ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

S4/4 Car Showrooms, Car Sales Areas and Petrol Filling Stns

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Impact upon the surrounding area - The proposed wall and railings would be located on
the line of the existing railings along Manchester Road. The proposed brick wall would be
constructed from a dark grey brick and as such, would not be a prominent feature in the
streetscene.

Page 78



The proposed lighting columns would be 6 metres in height and would be located on the
frontage with Manchester Road and on the perimeter of the car parking areas to the west
and east of the building. The proposed columns would be the same height as the street
lighting columns and telegraph pole. The applicant has amended the plans to reduce the
number of columns along the frontage by combining the cctv and lighting columns. Given
the existing street furniture and street trees, the proposed development would not be a
prominent feature within the streetscene.

27 of the proposed wall mounted lights would be located on the inside wall to the roof top
car park. As such, these proposed lights would not be visible from the streetscene. A further
3 of the proposed wall mounted lights would be located on the proposed building and would
be screened from view by the proposed fence and gate. Therefore, the proposed
development would not have an adverse impact upon the streetscene and would be in
accordance with Policies EN1/2 and EN1/7 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Impact upon residential amenity - There are residential properties located to the north
and south of the site and the residential properties to the west are at a higher level with
mature trees on the boundary. The proposed development would use high power white
LEDs and lux diagrams, which indicate the intensity and placement of the lighting have
been submitted as part of the application. The lux diagrams indicate that the light spill for
the proposed column mounted lights and the wall mounted lights would be contained within
the site. The proposed column mounted lights are programmable to set time schedules, can
be activated when the sensor detects movement and can be dimmed to suit local conditions
to further reduce the impact upon the neighbouring properties. Therefore, the proposed
development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the amenity of the
neighbouring properties.

Response to objectors

The issues of light spill and light pollution have been addressed above. The proposed lights
would be set to a timer and a condition requiring them to be switched off out of business
hours will be attached to any grant of planning permission.

Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons
1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.

Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

Page 79



2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 3273/00, 3273/C/021, 13.030/E/07,
3273/178D, 13.030/E/05, 3273/C/179A, 13.030 MB Whitefield_External Lighting,
13.030 Riof Car Park Lighting, Thorlux lighting - Type AA, T2, S1 and Y and the
development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings
hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. The external lighting shall not be switched on outside the hours of 08.30 to 18.30
Monday to Friday, 08.00 to 17.00 Saturdays and 10.00 to 16.00 Sundays.
Reason. In the interests of residential amenity pursuant to Policy S2/4 - Car
Showrooms, Car Sales Areas and Petrol Filling Stations of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253
5322

Page 80



Viewpoints

Synagogue

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

Bu

COUNCIL

N
/
WE
/

ADDRESS: 845 Manchester Road

APP. NO 58184

)

Bury

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services 1:1250

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 81




Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 82



Photo 3

Page 83



[I1T7

9T9czs ZLIGY

2avS2L 222107
AT Tl LIl AR UORBCMON eOOmA Seoureng ARMaa 1 ¢ 53 L i mo Yy

wn [ 1
120/0/€L2¢€ YAIY ueld o)S d e w000y 9NSS| UORINJISU0D
w 008 Ty ooy e [
. o P
cog,%!:s dl6 61g Aing PBOY Ja1SayouB -Si_.:.cm_.ta ey - O
Zu8g-88padIa; e
PO e v e et ] —
v @ o0zt ZUBG-SOPe0Ie) g [ 10N Wiz
— E..nu - g paradde e wearms ogmoyoeds
Ya-
A~ P L4 PRGOS DRUONSOCS! DUIDANG « $LOTZ0"LL - B A
WA - BB LORILIUOT - PLOZTO'RZ - D A
VAA-190M5a1 LA 19 CUIDING o) Amnba Buped ¥00/d PUB SRUKLIOID Py PORICPUS ~ ¥LOT#O'Z0 ~ G AW
Y- 1900b0) {10) eKD W £q Bupind 0085 Ay, S0 - FLOZ!
VA PODDE SMBLELIOCD i SUREIS - 102" -
VM - MORROUNO) Ly POPOW {5 enem) Sul BBBLIO - | 0T L60C - S AN QA LOBOC0'EL Suwaiq Ue Livatse suegese Sumly oG O
PLOZ 01K -H AN Aiopuneg Uapropity emmi
WM - 159001 a2 1% (BRI W) 8186 Buppils Jsnfiny - ¢L0Z L1741 - § A 1080 2 u00pddy U pust IR0 IS § I
[T

m.N%

£9g

OF WRIBUT USRISOR C4 PRILICH 0] 8 8000t SupeRE

an jaes powc
300pS DL IO Tyl “Peascin s 0 QUYL

] g alewn
:iilﬂasﬁi_qeﬂﬁ
009 8489 LAY 3143 e ()
P 27 8220 8209

MC URLOOE-00Z W DEONSG

ME WAO0Q-00F W beON Y
ME L0005y W baoN Y

g
MABOT, WTITBUCKCD
s uy

£ 00 o) Agususd

a3 punogy

2800 1004 W1 3 LY PO 8G

A8 ou LR O Aguel USK IS ‘SIRdeOR | ON N Sued 0N Paued
L PIOYS L1eumIu00 I :BRNNHS

“LALINS 10 LR3A) WSS L Of UALON-0L UOFRU %G

094010 [EYIOULIO LRI OIS “BUORPLID 00 G108 O DYEOCS 6 ROCU I LI DU 7y “JUBPY Of JQUISACH LY
‘LB A Wwiogp ;808 Bugloscoy 10} Bpdeq

2 pnous saaxe v

“opall WAL puUe'gos doy
somga; ssued parcidde uw Addy L unugo) B g pue B Oy gy
» A o 5paq Bopued o o
WIS % G5 B SAOUOR Of (june L
“gRat L (NG ey oaue

i ~ P BO1 JO)}SIYOURB W -

80.74

oy
8035
<3

80.02

PUS eaq uopanuna) pend o BT
-Jﬂlncoii.ﬁz.&: ial._s_-.ot.;_._g.
gy ) W0Rrape) acias /Bugpias Eugeos GACLIL) - URLRI OF M ¥4
' 81
T ———— thvAI 8124 80.95 80
/
/ 81.26
8l43%en g ¢
-
7 ! ~— 8164 8 .
[ E< E— v o e oG8R powen Y100t i)
T sv
08169 | Pi .
m 5 b s mm: m«N
A/ \? | = — =
AV _ “ “ [ A I
| | | ! _ _ | _ _ _
\ # [ Lo
Amdep Jm pesn -
I'ﬁ, IIIIII e R
| = =

7956 oY

Page 84

O



| 50/3 /000 TOM Ouai) SO Jpue )

oY PEPMD. DY wmag
0z =0 wmg | v D 5L s

o0y

W0k BupPr] pReadaid

omy Gvaig

Lot

zueg sepeeny
i)

-6z 0z 6l al 1zl
9
|t e T | A B
. ophov ere i e O3 e mubmia { {
[i[x4 91
s '
St
[
o
£l
]
— - zZL
= : S
o S e et T I 0 6 ¢ B
‘€8
L2 0L —
PR OB
oL Ay pegAU
2 w3 S (posyyr aue sAeq poUSEP U BYL |
69 oF |/ @l0iss0d) seoeds g9 Sunued joos
= ', wifny Bupunow oy (§
| : 22 v B 08 15 FCIE - B -1 o8 28 95 65 0 19 zo €0 9 9 99 29

Page 85

]




TTTTTTT lavezrzoaos Gz9ezsziu0l

WAZ T2l UOMAIG ARM UOMITIAN oBPmA Fzeomng AEMEsARI L < L 530 nDu Y

a8LUELCE KeIep Buier pue fem pesodaid  YHUEBLGOY e
" — = onss)| tmﬁl‘
VO d16 618 Aung ‘peoy 1asayouey i =
wes PIOUIM ZUBg-sepadIep m meste [
vhoz v Ao L M WAL - 189ND@1 S 18 PERPE FEMm 01 SIUBIOH - YLOZ'LI"FL - Q AB) D
L e _ e R — - I
ot o ypid
8227 oG
.20 82.09 peou JajseyoueL .
. 60
.LP
[o,2]
21 7u¢
8\ Ca
B
TL
(s}
o | BV
o
B
A
0P 30U RIS

o % DEOJ IBJSAUOUBLY O) UOEAD|D

_— ~ — . -—
& @ 8 ; g H g T jore oIS BUISKT
K = = — = = = -
|2 & 2 & 5 = 5 H E  1eae7wed Bunsixg
(B 2 = g E g |oAe| [BULBYD) BubpEg
g g
BE 3 T[T £3
3 gk H i e T [oA911BMJO dOL
TGSL o o 3
WO0'6L
w000 o i
—  e—— A —
w019 10 Buponce il (Pes) Lpad Bupenh Jo g ———— | N 4
I —— - g m—————e ] T
T R ——————— e ——— e ———— T pe e B B ) 1 I I = T T T
¥ =
E._” T T 11 — =11 ® ¢
—

U0Ad PRI G UON WakoLe
op0d RIBURD Aaoes
wrod ydwsOepey Bugapce

v
Y27 UNEo iy WY ————
od Bary ugy
o1 0o um
opod Doy ug

Ydesbum
g

T LwnRa 100y wo

Ea0wEs Aprows

107 Wy Wiy ug

Page 86



13.030 MB Whitefield _External Lighting 3 D I A I_ ux

D&d Building Services Consulting Engineers Ltd Operator

Telephone
Kegworth House, 28 Market Place, Kegworth Fax
Derby, DE74 2EE e-Mail

13.11.2014

Arkadiusz Gliszczynski

01509 670100

01509 670110
arkadiusz.gliszczynski@ddconsultingengineers.co.uk

Car Park lighting 141113 / 3D Rendering

Page 87

Page 7



13.030 Roof Car Park Lighting ! D I/ \ Lux

D&d Building Services Consulting Engineers Ltd Operator

Telephone
Kegworth House, 28 Market Place, Kegworth Fax
Derby, DE74 2EE e-Mail

16.09.2014

Arkadiusz Gliszczynski

01509 670100

01509 670110
arkadiusz.gliszczynski@ddconsultingengineers.co.uk

roof car park lighting passlight & realta / 3D Rendering

Page 88

Page 7



Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Item

Applicant: Mr Paul Grimshaw

Location: 51 Heathfield Road, Bury, BL9 8HB

Proposal: Single storey extension at side

Application Ref: 58252/Full Target Date: 09/02/2015
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

This application is being presented to the Planning Control Committee for
determination as it is for alterations to the home of a Councillor and as such has to be
determined by the PCC in accordance with the Councils scheme of delegation.

Description

Site comprises a semi-detached property, with similar properties ether side and on the
opposite side of the road.

The rear boundary is formed by the playing fields for EIms Bank School.

There is a 1.8m high fence between the proposed extension and the neighbours property.
The proposal is for a single storey extension on the south side of the property which also
connects to the existing rear extension. The existing rear extension will have an amendment

to the roof which will make the gable higher than existing.

Materials proposed are to match the existing property, namely red brick and grey concrete
tile.

Relevant Planning History
None.

Publicity
Immediate neighbours at 49, 53 and 58 Heathfield Road and ElIms Bank High School were
written to on the 15th December 2014 and no comments have been received.

Consultations
None required.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

H2/3 Extensions and Alterations

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be

Page 89

06



specifically mentioned.

Visual Amenity - The design of the extension is simple with materials to match the existing
property and a pitched roof. As such when viewed from the street or the neighbours
properties will not appear out of place and will accord with both UDP Policy H2/3 and
Supplementary Planning Document 6.

Residential Amenity - The proposed extension is close to the boundary with the detached
neighbour, but not so close as to give a feeling of enclosure that would be unacceptable in
amenity terms. However, it includes a secondary window to a habitable room in this
elevation and this could impact on the residential amenity of the neighbour. However, given
that there is a 1.8m high fence between the proposed extension and the window on the side
elevation of the neighbour, it is not considered that this would be so great as to warrant
either this window being obscure glazed, or refused.

The extension would mean that the roof on the rear extension would have to increase in
height by 0.2m. Given that this is on the south side of the attached neighbour it may impact
on light. However, given that the ridge is located over 4m from the boundary, it is not
considered that this would be so great as to be severely detrimental to their amenity and as
such this is acceptable and accords with both UDP Policy H2/3 and Supplementary
Planning Document 6.

Parking - The proposed side extension is flush with the front of the property and this will
restrict the ability to park cars on the site as it will leave a driveway of only an average of a
4.75m driveway, as opposed to the minimum standard of 5m in Supplementary Planning
Document 6 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties. However, a revised layout
plan has been produced showing how a car can be parked on the site, clear of the highway.
This arrangement is acceptable and accords with both UDP Policy H2/3 and Supplementary
Planning Document 6 and HT2/4 - Parking and new development.

Statement in accordance with Article 31 Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2012

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraphs 186-187 of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to the drawings received on 5th December 2014 and the .....
and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

For further information on the application please contact John Cummins on 0161 253 6089

Page 90



Viewpoints

Q2 Elms Bank Specialist Arts College

Nursery

St Bernadette's
RC Primary School

2

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 58252 / D
+ By
ADDRESS: 51 Heathfield Road / D]y

Bury S COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services 1:1250

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2013). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 91




Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 92



TV © 00T:T
¢V @ 00T:T ¢V @ 00T:T 9AlId PISl}YiesH O3
UOI1eA3| Jeal uoleAa|d a|qes UOI1BAD|D U0y

Il

TV @ 05T
- ue|d Joo|} punoJd

woo. Suuiow lley yssod

uayaI //

L

SNOILVAIT3 8 LNOAVT HOOTd SNILSIX3

wooJ Sunyis wooJ ujuip wooJ Al

¥T0C 43dNIAON

MVHSINIEO SIN 8 JIA

AdNG YNVEIANNNS IAINA AT13I4HLVIH TS
*NOISN3LX3 d3SOd0dd

Page 93



)

V© 00T'T
UoI1eAd|D Jedl

SNOILVAIT3 '8 LNOAVT Y0014 A3SOd0dd
¥10C 439WIAON
MVHSINIEO SIN 8 JIN

AdNEG NNVEANNNS ‘QVOY @T13I4HLVIH TS
*NOISN31X3 d3SOd0dd

pauosodaidl [Fy
2q 03 dmJ unsixe

pagiejua
2q 03 Sujuado
MopuIM BupsIXa

¢V @ 00T:T
uoleAd|a a|qes

i
|

TV @ 00T:T
PeoY plalyyieaH o3
uolleAa|o Juod}

Aypn

00ET

0Z9T

Ar 0097

g |

ur-paxoq aq
03 das unst

vV @ 05T

ue|d Joo|4 punoJ3

wooJ Sunyis

wooJ uiuip

wooJ Sulal

|

Page 94



BURY COUNCIL
DEPARTMENT FOR RESOURCES AND REGULATION

PLANNING SERVICES

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
20 January 2015

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Page 95



Item: 01

Item:02

Land To The Rear Of The Grants Arms, Market Place, Ramsbottom, Bury,
BLO 9AJ Application No. 58104

Erection of 24 (Cat C) flats for retirement housing for the elderly, communal facilities,
landscaping and car parking

Publicity

Objection received on behalf of the Ramsbottom Heritage Society which raises the

following issues:

» A newspaper article (Daily Telegraph 13th January 2015) on the removal of a
cobbled path with modern paving stones by a Council in Somerset is a reminder
of safety issues affecting the access to the application site. If the proposed
development were to take place the problem of pedestrian safety for the elderly
residents on our setted areas would be come much more significant and might
eventually have serious consequences for Ramsbottom's town centre's important
heritage;

» What would be the fate of the Market place's setted roads which contribute so
much to the character of the town?

Objection received from No 29 Greenheys Crescent with the following issues:

e Although it sounds like a good facility for the elderly of Ramsbottom there is very
little thought gone in to the siting of these flats. The only way onto the main road
is down a very steep cobbled road. Hardly suitable for the elderly. | suspect that if
planning is awarded there will soon be a change of use to flats for anyone with
the resulting traffic problem etc. it is another green open space being taken away
from Ramsbottom.

Response to objections -

» The proposals do not include works to the cobbled approach road.

e Access issues have been covered in the main body of the report.

e Alegal agreement in the form of a S106, prior to approval of an application, is to
be agreed by the applicant that the development provide the accommodation for
55 years and over. A new planning application and legal agreement would be
required if there were any changes to this provision.

Copy of the Conservation Area boundary attached for information.

Site of former Claremont Home, Park View Road, Prestwich, Manchester,
M25 1FA Application No. 58105

Erection of extra care and retirement living accommodation for the elderly (Class C2
Use—Residential Institutions) (62 units in total) landscaping and car parking.

Section 106 Obligations - With regard to this scheme the thresholds for the
provision of either affordable housing or recreation provision have not been exceeded
and as such, none is required.

The traffic calming measures will be undertaken in accordance with a Section 278
agreement.

Conditions - The condition relating to extra care facility should be amended to
include the provision of retirement living apartments for units 7, 8, 9, 10, 24, 25, 26,
41, 42, 43, 58, 59, 60 and 61.

Page 96



Item:03

Item:04

3. With the exception of the retirement living apartments (units 7, 8, 9, 10, 24, 25, 26,
41, 42, 43, 58, 59, 60 and 61) the premises to which this approval relates, shall be
used as an extra care facility (Class C2 - Residential institutions) and for no other
purpose (including any other purpose in C2 - Residential Institutions of the Schedule
to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (or in any provision
equivalent to that class in any statutory instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order
with or without modification).

Reason - To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential
accommodation and in consideration of the likely traffic flows to and from the site in
relation to the extant uses in the vicinity of the site pursuant to policies CF1/3, CF1/4
and HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Windacre Works, Mather Road, Bury, BL9 6RB Application No. 58133
Outline application for demolition of the existing buildings and redevelopment of the
site for residential development including means of access (All other Matters
Reserved)

Nothing further to report.

Higher Tops Barn, Moor Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NU Application
No. 58146
Erection of agricultural Store and yard, entrance onto Moor Road

Relevant Planning History

Wording amended to include -

55864 - Retrospective application for the change of use of land from agriculture to
hardstanding for the parking of vehicles and trailers (in connection with the use of the
stables at Higher Tops Barn) and retention of access track (resubmission) - Refused
25/01/2013. Appeal dismissed 3/9/2013.

Publicity

Further representation received from Higher Tops Farm which raises the following

issues -

e Condition 3 - with respect to surface water any suggested schemes should surely
be agreed with ourselves as landowners if it involves works on our land and has
implications to flooding or restricting water supplies;

e Condition 4 - does this allow one 4x4 to park, other domestic vehicles or is there a
restriction on numbers of vehicles?;

e Condition 6 - If the proposed use of the building is to park vehicles, access off
Moor Road should not be allowed;

» Condition 10 - Is it correct that access has to be in place before any other works
start?;

» No condition has been included to remove the yard gates at the head of the lane
and extend the wall across to block access. It is banked on the applicant carrying
out the works as on the drawing. It would mean the development could not be
built using vehicles/deliveries from Helmshore Road:

e The key is this should not be passed and stems from the original application for
the stables which were built without consultation and adequate consideration to
watercourses, rights of way and access;

* No guarantee the applicant will abide by these conditions when there are
conditions completed in conjunction with the stables - landscaping, tree planting;

» The current enforcement order is being ignored so this application should not be

Page 97



passed until everything is sorted out, things put right and agreements in place;
» Passing the application is just adding to the problem for all concerned.

Response to the objector -

e Condition 3 has been recommended to provide an appropriate drainage scheme
and would need not impact on any private property/drainage matters with the
applicant.

e Condition 4 would ensure that non-agricultural vehicles only are parked/stored on
the land.

e Condition 5 requires details of the walls/gate which would need to be approved.
Condition 6 would ensure that no domestic vehicles access the proposal site from
the adjacent field. The outstanding Enforcement Notice requires removal of the
track, which is being pursued separately. There is no need for duplication.

e Condition 10 - The proposed access from Moor Road would need to be in place
before commencement of other works.

* An application cannot be recommended for refusal based on an assumption that
any conditions would not be complied with. The Local Planning Authority has the
appropriate powers to enforce any conditions or breaches thereof.

Policies
Supplementary Planning Document 8 - New Buildings and Associated Development
in the Green Belt added to the Policy Section.

SPD8 - New buildings should normally form part of a group and relate to existing
buildings in size and colour. Materials should be sympathetic with the location,
minimising visual impact, taking into consideration any local vernacular and
consideration of integration of the building with its immediate surroundings.

Issues and analysis

Paragraph amended to read:

Hardstanding yard area - The applicant has taken note of the LPA's comments and
concerns which have been raised about the extent of hardstandings previously
applied for, and that have been refused on a number of occasions. The area of
hardstanding in this application would be 127 sq m which is significantly smaller in
size compared to the preceding application, which proposed a hardstanding area of
765 sq m and which was a reason for refusal on application reference 57685. A
hardstanding for an area of 169 sqm was also dismissed on appeal by the Planning
Inspector (reference 55864) as being excessive. He considered that "the
hardstanding area, even at a reduced size of 169 square metres and top-dressed
with a more appropriate material, would comprise an excessive space....... and would
comprise an inappropriate, urban feature, out of keeping with the surrounding area".

The proposed yard would be surfaced with locally sourced brown gravel which is
considered to be an appropriate surfacing commonly found in rural locations. The
area which is hatched on plan drawing number BD RE-SQ would be returned to a
grassed paddock area and this would also be included as a condition.

Conditions.

Condition 5 amended to read:

No development shall commence unless and until details of the alterations to the
existing wall, indicated as a dry stone wall to be retained (as shown on plan BD
RE-SQ), have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The wall shall be built in accordance with the approved details before the
commencement of the construction of the agricultural store and yard and maintained

Page 98



Item:05

thereafter.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity pursuant to Bury Unitary Development
Plan Policies EN1/1 - Visual amenity, EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, OL1/5 -
Mineral Extraction and Other Development in the Green Belt and SPD 8 - New
Buildings and Associated Development in the Green Belt.

Condition 6 amended to read:

Any field gate/opening or other form of access from the development site hereby
approved on plan BD RE-SP, to the field to the east, shall not be used for domestic
access purposes.

Reason. In the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development
Plan Policies HT2 - Highway Network and HT4 - New Development.

Condition 7 amended to read:

7. Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995, (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), there shall be no:

e Extensions or alterations to the agricultural building;

e Provision, rearrangement or replacement of a private way;

e Provision of hard surfaces,

and this condition shall apply to both the land edged red and the land edged blue on
plan BD RE-SP.

Reason. To ensure that future inappropriate development does not occur pursuant to
Policies OL4/5 - Agricultural Development, OL1/5 - Mineral extraction and Other
Development in the Green belt, and EN9/1 - Special Landscape Areas of the Unitary
Development Plan.

Condition 10 amended to read:

The proposed access from/to Moor Road hereby approved shall be implemented and
be available for use, before commencement of any other part of the development
hereby approved as shown in plan BD RE-SQ.

Reason. To ensure the site can be satisfactorily accessed from Moor Road in the
interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Pian Policies HT2 -
Highway Network and HT4 - New Development.

Proposed plans.

Revised plans received for the Proposed Cross Sectional Drawing showing access
off Moor Road, existing wall and proposed Agricultural Store drawing number BD
REV-ST and Proposed Agricultural Store (Elevations and Plan) drawing number BR
01 (Revision 4).

Mercedes Benz, 845 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9TP Application No.
58184

Erection of 17 no. column mounted lights and 4 no. wall mounted lights in the
dealership car park/display area, 27 no. wall mounted lights on the roof-top car park
and provision of a low level wall and railings along the Manchester Road site frontage

Conditions

The applicant has requested that condition 3, relating to the external lighting should
be amended to allow 30 minutes before and after closing time for staff to vacate the
premises and to allow the security lighting to be on if the sensor detects movement.

Page 99



Item:06

3. The external lighting shall not be switched on outside the hours of 08.00 to 19.00
Monday to Friday, 07.30 to 17.30 Saturdays and 09.30 to 16.30 Sundays except
where the sensor detects movement on the site for security purposes.

Reason. In the interests of residential amenity pursuant to Policy S2/4 - Car
Showrooms, Car Sales Areas and Petrol Filling Stations of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

51 Heathfield Road, Bury, BL9 8HB Application No. 58252
Single storey extension at side

Relevant Planning History
An application was approved 36139 in February 2000 for the single storey rear
extension on the property.

Drawings

An amended plan has been received showing a standard parking space clear of the
public highway as mentioned in the main report and a copy is appended to this report.
Condition 2 will be amended to reflect the new drawing number.

Condition 2 shall read:

This decision relates to the drawings received on 5th December 2014 as amended by
the drawings received on the 14th January 2015 and the development shall not be
carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of design
pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed in the report.

Page 100



AHdvd TIVLLNN

=]

Page 101

o




S
M M WONoqsWey ‘Peoy JOOR ‘piex 3 al0)§ eImnoudy - ureq sdog, JoySiy
el et e N O £ 2103§ feInynoudy pasodod pue [jem Sunsma ‘peoy JI00
9 m ] . SV wwSLrt  £v @ 5Lt iopes L o 130 ss800y SUIMOYS SUIMEI( [RUONIAS 5017 pasodoag
! SNOISIAHY 10h3q plaeq :Ag umelq

Vd1
Jo reacxdde oy 03 paerd
JUO)SIULY] UMOI(] PIMNOS
[220] - pIRA [eIny[nanSe
3} 58 JuLes 9} ¥ 03
Teuye) Jusiperd %S 03
juswdofessp pasodoxd
U] YoB1} $5000Y

Vd'T Yim pazise se uonpuod

spremisea Juidofs 4q uStsop pue Junys espa1d 1ej0urIp

%€ Juotpeld prex uv0g 03 3did urerp utiolg

3BRIDUCD

uy pasedta

Jdopped pue[sseid o) paiojsay WIRIDP ULI0}
yoopped pue prex Junsmy %M”wo—wmwm
=11 e

o ) I ] L 7
; = = | | [— Vi L ! ! i o
2 W i 1 i : - D
£ TS s 2 L H ' | —|! y

W3Ry Ul WOt 0

91ed uLrey prepue)s & e paoeider aq fim oo
Supuado ayy, ‘yutod ssooe 21y J0f pojeard
Suuado ue pue paureal [fem Sunsixyg

Page 102



&
[ S/t S3lAB(] ULRT loj ureg sdoj 1o
L LaB( utelg Jpy 105 wieg sdog IoySiy
o Vio/orlae |z ] (ueld R suoneas[d) 21038 [BINHNOUSY
| 3eom0 SuuN| J0[33 PUASUADY, 3065 T Uo Gavid Jood 0} 23U ¥ioz/50/ .. Am . .
m = :s_..uwv..u.gwmz 730 S31apw U0 Gaayd Jood o} aFury amm_ne%h 7] @ £V @ 00L:T 9[rag g:ﬁgﬁﬂuﬂm
SNOISIATY e e
a3ex01g Butppog
woo'§ sesodind Lipurgsny 10§
ALeq 3utpjoy [eunuy
s10piq
s3e103g Juawaldwy o3uio)g yraspaod
uepg J00]

Suipaeoq anyysiyiox
s[Pueq aysodwo) usaln
uoneua
| N
g
a @
: 8
B
=] ]

WONBAIY [nog

UONeA3[H I1Seq

Page 103



v @ 00T:T
V@ 00T:T v @ 00T°T PeOY PI31y1eaH 03
UOIIBA3|D Jedl uoneas|a ajqes UOI1BADD 1UO1}

a. 1 ot
g S

-
fall

|

vV @051
ue|d Joo}} punoid

v W 0% i 5 v L . 5
_usu_.,s%.u B I Aymn g Apnis
2q 03 dmJ Bunisixa B8 u-pexoq aq

01 das Sunsxa
o297 ] [

.; d m
uayp| /

pasowas 3q
- oveanduisxe

pediejua
0 0 Bupado
MOpUIM unsixa

ST'10°ZT pafjapowaJ uapJes Juol4 g Asy
ST'T0'SO AemanLp 03 pajenisn||i 1e) v A3Y

SNOILYATII '8 LNOAVT ¥00Td 3S0OdOYd

wool unys

| x I

woos Sulnp waod Suial

10T 439N3IAON

MYHSIYD SIN B JN
A¥NE MWNVEANNNS ‘OVOY G13I4HLVIH TS @

*NOISN31X3 03S0d0Yd 7

Page 104



REPORT FOR DECISION

Agenda lIte

U T

COUNCIL

Y/

Agenda
Item

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

20" JANUARY 2015

SUBJECT:

DELEGATED DECISIONS

REPORT FROM:

DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

CONTACT OFFICER:

JOHN CUMMINS

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: The report lists:

Recent Delegated planning decisions since the last PCC
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Framework? Yes

Do the proposals accord with the Policy

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk

Considerations:

Executive Director of Resources to advise
regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

Wards Affected:

All listed

Scrutiny Interest:

N/A
Dngp 105




TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is @ monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning
decisions made by the officers of the Council.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-None
Contact Details:-

John Cummins

Development Manager

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation
3 Knowsley Place

Bury  BL9 OEJ]

Tel: 0161 253 6089
Email: j.cummins@bury.gov.uk

Page 106




Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers
Between 01/12/2014 and 11/01/2015 @]W

Ward: Bury East

Application No.: 58090 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Split Decision
. 147 Radcliffe Road, Bury, BL9 9LN
Location:
Proposal:  A: Single storey extension at rear - Approved
B: Single storey extension at side - Refused
Application No.: 58114 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 8 St Marys Place, Bury, BL9 0DZ
Location:
Proposal:  Proposed Internal remodelling to create a single unit and the removal of internal wall at ground
floor; external fire escape door
Application No.: 58115 App. Type: LBC 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
Location: 8 St Marys Place, Bury, BL9 0DZ
Proposal:  Proposed internal remodelling to create a single unit and the removal of internal wall at ground
floor; external fire escape door (Listed Building Consent)
Application No.: 58142 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2014 Refused
Location: Fountain Street North, Bury, BL9 7AN
Proposal:  Change of use from industrial building (Class B1) to children's daytime play centre (Class D1)
(resubmission)
Application No.: 58180 App. Type: FUL 07/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. 21 Broadbent Drive, Bury, BL9 7TN
Location:
Proposal: Dormers at front and side
Application No.: 58193 App. Type: FUL 05/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. 17 Palace Street, Bury, BL9 7HQ
Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at rear
Application No.: 58212 App. Type: FUL 07/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. 62 East Street, Bury, BL9 ORX
Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at rear
Application No.: 58213 App. Type: TEL 23/12/2014 Prior Approval Not required
. 35 South Cross Street, Bury, BL9 ORS
Location:
Proposal: Prior notification of single storey extension at rear with 2 no. roof lights
Application No.: 58286 App. Type: TCU 17/12/2014 Acceptance of Change of Use
. 22 Crompton Street, Bury, BL9 0AD
Location:
Proposal: Notification of flexible change of use from retail (Class A1) to financial and professional

services (Class A2) for up to two years with effect from 19 January 2015

Page 107 12/01/2015



Ward: Bury East - Moorside

Application No.: 58041 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. Sillinghurst Farm, Castle Hill Road, Bury, BL9 6UN
Location:

Proposal: Erection of two buildings to enclose Biomass heating systems in association with existing
poultry farm use

Application No.: 58055 App. Type: FUL 03/12/2014 Approve

. Land adjacent to 103 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 5AN
Location:

Proposal:  Variation of condition no. 2 of approved planning permission 52821 to amend the windows to
elevational treatment of rear stair enclosure.

Application No.: 58125 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
Location: 38 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6DP
Proposal:  Change of use of ground floor from restaurant (A3) to estate agents (A2) and new shop front.
Application No.: 58126 App. Type: FUL 16/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. Chesham County Primary School, Talbot Grove, Bury, BL9 6PH
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at front with alterations and associated works
Application No.: 58165 App. Type: LDCP 12/12/2014 Lawful Development
. Link House, 35 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 5AE
Location:
Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for a proposed use of Link House as a place of worship, church
hall, creche, day nursery, non residential education and training centre under Use Class D1
Application No.: 58206 App. Type: ADV 19/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. Unit 5, Woodfield Retail Park, Peel Way, Bury, BL9 5BY
Location:
Proposal: 4 No. non-illuminated fascia signs at front
Application No.: 58210 App. Type: LDCP 05/12/2014 Lawful Development
. Unit 3, Albert Works, Brook Street, Bury, BL9 6AH
Location:
Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for a proposed M. O. T. Testing within the existing garage site.

Ward: Bury East - Redvales

Application No.: 58091 App. Type: FUL 09/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

Location: 41 Leyton Drive, Bury, BL9 9TS

Proposal:  First floor side extension and conversion of existing flat roof to pitched at front

Application No.: 58166 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 47 Britain Street, Bury, BL9 9PB

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension

Page 108 12/01/2015



Application No.: 58176 App. Type: FUL 07/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
Land at rear of Keswick Drive/Derwent Drive, Bury, BL9 9LT

Location:
Proposal:  Variation of condition no. 2 (Approved Drawings) of planning permission 56953 - Amend house
type.
Application No.: 58242 App. Type: GPDE 04/12/2014 Prior Approval Required and Refused
. 30 Meadway, Bury, BL9 9TY
Location:
Proposal:  Prior notification for single storey rear extension

Ward: Bury West - Church

Application No.: 58071 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. Land at rear of Belbeck Street, Bury, BL8 2PX

Location:

Proposal: Erection of 2 no. semi detached dwellings (resubmission)

Application No.: 58089 App. Type: FUL 02/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 39 Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2AB

Location:

Proposal: Installation of roller shutters to shop front

Application No.: 58112 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 39 & 41 Scholes Street, Bury, BL8 2RB

Location:

Proposal: Demolition of pair of semi-detached dwellings and erection of 3 no. town houses

Application No.: 58117 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 119 Newington Drive, Bury, BL8 2EG

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey extensions to side and rear

Application No.: 58124 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

Location: 10 Anderton Close, Bury, BL8 2HQ

Proposal:  Single storey front extension

Application No.: 58183 App. Type: LDCP 03/12/2014 Lawful Development
. 602 Bolton Road,Bury, BL8 2DR

Location:

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed side dormer

Application No.: 58201 App. Type: FUL 05/01/2015 Approve with Conditions

Location: 4 Keighley Close, Bury, BL8 2JY

Proposal: Part two storey/part first floor extension to side

(Resubmission)

Ward: Bury West - Elton

Page 109 12/01/2015



Application No.: 57820 App. Type: FUL 08/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
1 - 3 Cornall Street, Bury, BL8 1RZ

Location:
Proposal: Change of use from hairdressers and living accommodation to 2 no. flats
Application No.: 58083 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. Alfred Works, Woodhill Street, Bury, BL8 1AT
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension to existing storage/sales area together with new roof; Erection of 5 no.
garages/storage units
Application No.: 58110 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 146 Tottington Road, Bury, BL8 1RU
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension to rear; erection of detached garage to rear and installation of steel
framed stairs to rear; replacement shopfront/shutters.
Application No.: 58128 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 14 Elterwater Close, Bury, BL8 1UW
Location:
Proposal: First floor/two storey extension at side
Application No.: 58151 App. Type: FUL 07/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
Location: The Flat, Woodhill Street, Bury, BL8 1AT

Proposal:  Change of use from residential flat (Class C3) to offices/light industrial (B1 (c))

Application No.: 58161 App. Type: FUL 16/12/2014 Refused

Location: Unit 4, Bolholt Works, Walshaw Road, Bury, BL8 1PL

Proposal:  Variation of condition no. 2 following grant of planning permission 51268 for a temporary
period of 2 years:
Amend from: The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the following
times:
4pm - 9pm Monday to Friday, 10am - 7pm Saturdays.
Amend to: The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the following
times:
9am-9pm Monday to Sunday

Application No.: 58162 App. Type: FUL 08/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 11 Sleaford Close, Bury, BL8 1XF

Location:

Proposal: Porch at front

Application No.: 58232 App. Type: LDCP 11/12/2014 Lawful Development

Location: 19 Springside View, Bury, BL8 4LU

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for a proposed single storey rear extension

Application No.: 58256 App. Type: LDCE 18/12/2014 Lawful Development

. Garsdale Public House, Woodhill Road, Bury, BL8 1BT
Location:
Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for existing use of 1. Lean to Gazebo (at rear); 2. Garden Bar

(at rear); 3. Marquee (at rear); 4. Children's Playhouse (at rear); 5. Adventure Play area (at
rear); 6. Smoking Shelter at front); 7. Walk-in-fridge (at front); 8. Raised Seating area (at
front); 9. Shed (at rear)

Page 110 12/01/2015



Ward: North Manor

Application No.: 58017 App. Type: FUL 08/12/2014 Refused
L . 449 Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9RN
ocation:
Proposal:  Single storey garage extension
Application No.: 58100 App. Type: FUL 03/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 86 Bolton Road, Hawkshaw, Bury, BL8 4JA
Location:
Proposal:  Extension above existing garage with extension to main roof
Application No.: 58123 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
Location: 2 Arlington Close, Summerseat, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL9 5NY

Proposal: Two/single storey extension at side/rear with dormers to front and rear; Reinstatement of
parking space and creation of new vehicular access to front (resubmission)

Application No.: 58130 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 9 Greenheys Crescent, Greenmount, Bury, BL8 4QD

Location:

Proposal: Installation of bay window to front

Application No.: 58158 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

Location: 15 Station Road, Greenmount, Bury, BL8 4BJ

Proposal:  Two storey/first floor extension at side with rear juliet balcony; Roof canopy at front

Application No.: 58160 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

Location: 178 Railway Street, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5QB

Proposal: Loft conversion with rooflights and installation of second floor window to gable elevation

Application No.: 58164 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

L . 9 Birch Grove, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9RP

ocation:

Proposal:  Garage conversion; new flat roof over existing and single storey extension to rear.

Application No.: 58199 App. Type: FUL 05/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. 12 Hillstone Close, Greenmount, Bury, BL8 4EZ

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extensions at rear and side

Application No.: 58207 App. Type: FUL 09/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. 21 Bolton Road, Hawkshaw, Bury, BL8 4HZ

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear with garage conversion and replacement windows and doors

Application No.: 58209 App. Type: LDCP 08/12/2014 Lawful Development
. 40 Rowlands Road, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5NF

Location:

Proposal:  Certificate of lawfulness for proposed front door and landing window to be enlarged

Page 111 12/01/2015



Ward: Prestwich - Holyrood

Application No.: 57974 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 10 Roseland Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2GX
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension
Application No.: 58073 App. Type: ADV 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 466 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1NL
Location:
Proposal: 1 No. internally illuminated fascia sign and 1 no. internally illuminated projecting sign
Application No.: 58074 App. Type: FUL 09/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 466 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1NL
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear; re-leveling of footway to create level access to the shop.
Application No.: 58082 App. Type: FUL 02/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 14 Nursery Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3EN
Location:

Proposal: Demolition of existing garage & utility building and erection of two storey extension at side and
single storey extension at rear.

Application No.: 58111 App. Type: FUL 18/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

Location: Prestwich Heys FC, Sandgate Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6WG

Proposal: Installation of modular steel changing room

Application No.: 58157 App. Type: LDCE 19/12/2014 Lawful Development

Location: 263 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1JA

Proposal: Lawful Development Certificate for the existing use of the ground floor as a hot food takeaway

(Class A5).

Application No.: 58163 App. Type: FUL 18/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 26 Glebelands Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1NE

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension and single storey rear extension

Application No.: 58172 App. Type: FUL 17/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 25 Guest Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3DJ

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at rear

Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley

Application No.: 58044 App. Type: FUL 02/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 3 Scholes Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OPD
Location:
Proposal:  Change of use from office (Class A2) to coffee shop (Class A3) with external seating area at

side; Alterations to front with retractable awnings and doors to side elevation

Page 112 12/01/2015



Application No.: 58099 App. Type: FUL 03/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
5 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9]Z

Location:

Proposal:  Change of use from shop (Class A1) to restaurant and cafe (Class A3); External alterations to
include new shop front, parking, bin store, enclosed external service staircase from ground to
lower mezzanine floor level and 2 no. dormers (resubmission)

Application No.: 58108 App. Type: ADV 08/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 25A Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester M25 9]Z

Location:

Proposal: 3 No. illuminated fascia signs

Application No.: 58119 App. Type: FUL 08/12/2014 Refused

. 25 Eastleigh Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BX

Location:

Proposal: First floor extension at rear; single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 58132 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Refused

. 121 Park Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DU

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey extensions with dormers to front and rear and balconies at rear and installation of
electric gates (resubmission)

Application No.: 58139 App. Type: FUL 09/01/2015 Approve with Conditions

. 22 Woodhill Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0AD

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey extension to side/rear

Application No.: 58141 App. Type: FUL 19/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 76 & 76a Kings Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFY

Location:

Proposal:  Retrospective application for change of use from residential (Class C3) to part office (Class B1)
and part storage and distribution (Class B8) (resubmission)

Application No.: 58147 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 63 Downham Crescent, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OEH

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear; new side door with canopy (resubmission)

Application No.: 58181 App. Type: FUL 07/01/2015 Approve with Conditions

Location: 44 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JU

Proposal: Change of use from retail shop (A1) to physiotherapy clinic (D1)

Application No.: 58203 App. Type: FUL 09/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. 102 Scholes Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0AU

Location:

Proposal: Two storey rear/side extension

Application No.: 58249 App. Type: FUL 06/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. 34 Tewkesbury Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JN

Location:

Proposal: New gable roof with front and rear dormer extensions (resubmission of 57376)

Page 113 12/01/2015



Application No.: 58250 App. Type: FUL 06/01/2015 Approve with Conditions

. 36 Tewkesbury Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JN
Location:

Proposal: New gable roof with front and rear dormer extensions and single storey/two storey side and
rear extensions and front porch (resubmission of 57375)

Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's

Application No.: 57875 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Refused
. Summerfield Bungalow, Summerfield Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9XS

Location:

Proposal:  Conversion of garage to store (Retrospective)

Application No.: 58177 App. Type: FUL 18/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 33 Beckley Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GY

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side and first floor extension at rear

Ward: Radcliffe - East

Application No.: 58170 App. Type: FUL 15/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 35 Seddon Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4TA
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension
Application No.: 58245 App. Type: FUL 08/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. 11 Parkside Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2QS
Location:
Proposal: Retention of change of use of ground floor dwelling house (C3) and garden to (Class D1) child

minding

Ward: Radcliffe - North

Application No.: 58059 App. Type: ADV 04/12/2014 Refused
. Bus shelter on Church Street (opposite Christ Church vicarage), Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5RU

Location:

Proposal: Internally illuminated advertising panel to existing bus shelter

Application No.: 58078 App. Type: FUL 17/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 21 Tiverton Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3UJ

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey extension at rear

Application No.: 58095 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 76 Countess Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3NH

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey extension to side and rear

Application No.: 58121 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 151 Bury New Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 6QQ

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey side extension and single storey/two storey extensions at rear

Page 114 12/01/2015



Application No.: 58131 App. Type: FUL 08/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
299A Ainsworth Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4EZ

Location:

Proposal: Change of use of offices and flat to form 3 no. self contained flats at first floor

Application No.: 58134 App. Type: FUL 06/01/2015 Refused
. Sunny Bank, Arthur Lane, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5PN

Location:

Proposal: Conversion of detached stable block to a separate dwelling with single storey extension

Application No.: 58154 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 12 Claydon Drive, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3XA

Location:

Proposal:  First floor extension at side

Application No.: 58219 App. Type: GPDE 22/12/2014 Prior Approval Not required
. 108 Stanley Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4HG

Location:

Proposal:  Prior Notification for a proposed single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 58226 App. Type: TEL 24/12/2014 Prior Approval Not required
. 103 Coronation Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3RD

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification for single storey extension at rear

Ward: Radcliffe - West

Application No.: 58068 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 10 Stand Rise, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1BT

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey rear extension

Application No.: 58140 App. Type: ADV 16/12/2014 Split Decision
. Sunlight House, 125 Stand Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1JR

Location:

Proposal:  A. 2 No. illuminated fascia signs, 2 no. non-illuminated fascia signs

B. 1 no. illuminated projecting sign

Application No.: 58173 App. Type: FUL 05/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. 87 Hutchinson Way, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3AB

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at side

Application No.: 58194 App. Type: FUL 24/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 24 Rayleigh Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1RL

Location:

Proposal:  Conservatory at rear

Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington

Page 115 12/01/2015



Application No.: 58040 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Refused
20 First Avenue, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3JA

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side and rear

Application No.: 58152 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

Location: 7 Spring Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3SA

Proposal:  Single storey extension at side

Application No.: 58178 App. Type: GPDE 11/12/2014 Prior Approval Not required
. 33 Wellbank Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3HX

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification for single storey rear extension

Application No.: 58192 App. Type: FUL 22/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

Location: 42 Watling Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QW

Proposal:  Two storey rear extension

Application No.: 58208 App. Type: FUL 31/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. White Paddocks Lodge, Harwood Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3PT

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey side and single storey rear extensions; External alterations to include installation of

solar panels (resubmission)

Application No.: 58237 App. Type: FUL 08/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
I Birch Hey Farm, Turton Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QG

Location:

Proposal:  Convert and extend redundant piggery to form dwelling

Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom

Application No.: 57623 App. Type: FUL 09/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. Land at Carr Street and Carr Fold, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9EG
Location:
Proposal:  Erection of dwelling
Application No.: 57805 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 6-8 Market Place, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9HT
Location:
Proposal:  Proposed change of use of first and second floor into 2 bed flats. Loft conversion with one bed
flat, including new staircase, conservation roof windows to front and dormer to the rear.
Application No.: 57806 App. Type: LBC 05/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 6-8 Market Place, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9HT
Location:
Proposal: Listed Building Consent for a proposed change of use of first and second floor into 2 bed flats.

Loft conversion with one bed flat, including new staircase, conservation roof windows to front
and dormer to the rear.

Page 116 12/01/2015



Application No.: 57978 App. Type: FUL 03/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
24 Stanford Hall Crescent, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9FD

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at front

Application No.: 58057 App. Type: FUL 05/12/2014 Refused

. Higher Redisher Farm, Redisher Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4HX

Location:

Proposal: Demolition of rear utility room; replacement front porch, single storey side extension, dormers
to rear elevation, first floor extension over existing garage with dormer, barn conversion and
erection of 3 bay garage with domestic offices above.

Application No.: 58127 App. Type: FUL 24/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 7 Lodge Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9AW

Location:

Proposal: Change of use from storage to offices (Class B1)

Application No.: 58129 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 16 Cleveland Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9FH

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at front; Single storey extension at side; Decking at rear; Erection of a
Pergola at rear; Erection of 1.3M fence at rear; alterations to rear garden

Application No.: 58145 App. Type: ADV 19/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. Hare And Hounds, 400 Bolton Road West, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9RY

Location:

Proposal: 1 no. non-illuminated fascia sign; 4 no. non-illuminated hoarding signs and 3 no.
non-illuminated signs.

Application No.: 58159 App. Type: TEL 05/12/2014 Prior Approval Not required

. 101 Peel Brow, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 0AZ

Location:

Proposal:  Prior notification of proposed single storey extension at rear

Application No.: 58182 App. Type: FUL 22/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 18 Whittingham Drive, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9LZ

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey side extension;single storey rear extension;bay window to first floor rear elevation
and new front porch

Application No.: 58231 App. Type: FUL 09/01/2015 Approve with Conditions

. 7 St Annes Meadows, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3LQ

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey extension at rear including balcony

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses

Application No.: 58118 App. Type: FUL 10/12/2014 Refused

Location: 4 Prestfield Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6BD

Proposal: Conservatory and raised decking at rear with handrail and steps to garden level
Application No.: 58168 App. Type: FUL 18/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
Location: 7 Mode Hill Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8]F

Proposal:  Single storey side extension

Page 117 12/01/2015



Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park

Application No.: 58006 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 69 Higher Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7EZ
Location:

Proposal:  Raising of ridge height of roof and roof extension with front dormers to create accommodation
in roofspace and single storey extension at side/rear; Boundary wall and gates at front

Application No.: 58063 App. Type: FUL 18/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

Location: 77 Sergeants Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7TR

Proposal: First floor extension at side

Application No.: 58098 App. Type: FUL 01/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

Location: 14 Ferndale Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7QP

Proposal: Replacement windows; alteration to existing rear out rigger and rendering of all elevations.

Application No.: 58169 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 113 Higher Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7EY

Location:

Proposal: Demolition of garage; Erection of a two storey/three storey extension at side and rear; Raised
patio area at rear with access to basement conversion; formation of ramp at rear; widened
entrance

Application No.: 58174 App. Type: FUL 16/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 111 Higher Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7EY

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey extension at rear; Patio area with glazed balustrade and steps to garden level;
Render to existing single storey extension

Application No.: 58271 App. Type: GPDE 09/01/2015 Prior Approval Not required

. 13 Wilton Street, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7FT

Location:

Proposal: Prior notification for single storey rear extension

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth

Application No.: 58002 App. Type: FUL 11/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. Carvansons LLP, Hollins Vale Works, The Hags, off Hollins Lane, Bury, BL9 8QG

Location:

Proposal: First floor office extension and portal frame extension to storage/manufacturing area

Application No.: 58004 App. Type: FUL 10/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. Pilsworth Energy Centre, Moss Hall Road, Bury, BL9 7]L

Location:

Proposal: Installation of a pilot energy storage system and associated development for a 2 year

operational period

Application No.: 58053 App. Type: FUL 02/12/2014 Approve with Conditions
. 262 Hollins Lane, Bury, BL9 8AY

Location:

Proposal: Raised decking at side and rear

Page 118 12/01/2015



Application No.: 58072 App. Type: FUL 04/12/2014 Approve with Conditions

. 28 Sandown Road, Bury, BL9 8HN
Location:

Proposal:  Single storey extensions to garden store (retrospective)

Application No.: 58215 App. Type: FUL 09/01/2015 Approve with Conditions
. White Brow House, Hollins Brow, Bury, BL9 9TH

Location:

Proposal: Single storey side extension; garage conversion; front canopy and surface rendering

Total Number of Applications Decided: 113

Page 119 12/01/2015



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



Agenda lIte

REPORT FOR DECISION

DL

Agenda
Item 6

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

20" JANUARY 2015

SUBJECT:

PLANNING APPEALS

REPORT FROM:

DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

CONTACT OFFICER:

JOHN CUMMINS

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: Planning Appeals:

- Lodged

- Determined

Enforcement Appeals

- None to report

OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices.

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy
Framework? Yes

Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk
Considerations:

Executive Director of Resources to advise
regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A
of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No
Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

age 121




Wards Affected: All listed

Scrutiny Interest: N/A
TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:
Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is @ monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that
were upheld.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:- Copy Appeal Decisions attached

Contact Details:-

John Cummins, Development Manager

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation,
3 Knowsley Place ,Bury  BL9 OEJ

Tel: 0161 253 6089

Email: j.cummins@bury.gov.uk

Page 122




Planning Appeals Lodged Uﬂ[ﬁy

between 08/12/2014 and 11/01/2015 L

Application No.: 56560/FUL Appeal lodged: 07/01/2015

Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Miss Elizabeth Haslam

Location Land adjacent to 9 Taylors Lane, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 6QS

Proposal Demolition of existing buildings and regrading of land; Erection of 1 no.
detached dwelling; Erection of stables, with tack room, store, kennels and wash

room; Formation of manege (resubmission)
Application No.: 57263/FUL Appeal lodged: 08/01/2015
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Refuse

Applicant: Mr Peter Clarke
Location Land at rear of 141 Stubbins Lane, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO OPR

Proposal Erection of a two storey dwelling

“Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 2

Page 123



Planning Appeals Decided
between 17/11/2014 and 11/01/2015 @]W
Application No.: 57611/FUL Appeal Decision: Dismissed
Decision level: DEL Date: 29/12/2014

Recommended Decision: Refuse
Applicant: Mr & Mrs John Hughes

Appeal type: Written Representations

Location: 74 Windsor Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 ODE

Proposal: First floor extension at side and rear

A copy of the Inspectors Appeal Decision is attached below;

Page 124



%ﬁﬁ The Planning Inspectorate

g F L

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 18 December 2014

by P Eggleton BSc(Hons) MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 29 December 2014

Appeal Ref: APP/T4210/D/14/2227659
74 Windsor Road, Prestwich, Manchester M25 ODE

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr J Hughes against the decision of Bury Metropolitan Borough
Council.

The application Ref 57611 was refused by notice dated 5 August 2014.

The development proposed is a first floor extension to rear and gable of the property.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Main Issue

2.

The main issue is the effect on the character and appearance of the area.

Reasons

3.

The proposal would extend the dwelling, at first floor level, up to the boundary
with the neighbouring property. At present, the dwellings are separated at first
floor level by the width of the two garages. The slight set back and lower roof
proposed would help to integrate the new and existing parts of the dwelling.
However, this would be insufficient to ensure that the extension would be
viewed as having a significantly different alignment to that of the frontage of
the house. It would increase the scale of the dwelling overall and the
prominence of the extension would significantly reduce the perceived gap
between these houses.

I acknowledge that the properties opposite are terraced and that there are a
number of other properties in the area with side extensions, including the
attached neighbouring house. However, this section of Windsor Road has
generally retained its original character and the spaces between the majority of
semi-detached properties in this street make an important contribution to this.
This proposal would result in these houses appearing more cramped. Their
designs, particularly the hipped roofs, are not well suited to a more terraced
form. Overall, the proposal would detract from the character and appearance
of the area.

The proposal would be contrary to the design aspirations of Policy H2/3 of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 as this includes a requirement that house
extensions and alterations be considered with regard to a number of factors
including the character of the property and that of the surrounding area. 1

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 125



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/D/14/2227659

acknowledge that the design and materials proposed generally satisfy factors
within the policy but this does not overcome the conflict with the element
relating to the character of the area. The policy accords with the design
requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and I afford it
considerable weight.

6. The proposal would also be at odds with the approach suggested by the
Council’s Supplementary Planning Document: Alterations and Extensions to
Residential Properties 2010. This seeks a 1.5m set back from the frontage. I
agree with the appellant that this is a very prescriptive requirement and to
some extent, it is at odds with paragraph 59 of the Framework. However, its
purpose it to ensure that uncharacteristic terracing does not occur. The set
back that has been proposed with regard to this extension does not overcome
this concern.

7. Ido not know the circumstances relating to the other extensions in the area
that have similar characteristics to this proposal. I cannot assume that the
Council has acted inconsistently with regard to its current policy position.
Whilst these examples provide some weight in favour of the proposal, I have to
consider new development on its own merits and in the light of the current
policy position.

8. I acknowledge that the living conditions within the property would be enhanced
and the proposal would make effective and efficient use of the site. These
matters gain some support from the Framework. However, whilst I have
considered all the matters put forward, they do not outweigh my concerns with
regard to the character and appearance of the area. I therefore dismiss the
appeal.

Peter Eggleton
INSPECTOR

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Pagze 126



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 December, 2014
	4 Planning Applications
	supplementary agenda

	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals

